
 

 
90 North Main Street | Tooele, Utah 84074 

435-843-2113 | 435-843-2119 (fax) | www.tooelecity.org 

City Recorder’s Office 

Department  

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Tooele City Council & Municipal Building Authority (MBA) will meet in a 

Business Meeting on Wednesday, June 21, 2023, immediately following the RDA meeting that begins at the hour 

of 7:00 p.m.  The meeting will be held in the Tooele City Hall Council Chambers, located at 90 North Main Street, 

Tooele, Utah. The complete public notice is posted on the Utah Public Notice Website www.utah.gov, the Tooele 

City Website www.tooelecity.org, and at Tooele City Hall. To request a copy of the public notice or for additional 

inquiries please contact Michelle Pitt, City Recorder at (435)843-2111 or michellep@tooelecity.org 

 

We encourage you to join the City Council meeting electronically by visiting the Tooele City YouTube 

Channel, at https://www.youtube.com/@tooelecity or by going to YouTube.com and searching “Tooele City 

Channel”. If you are attending electronically and would like to submit a comment for the public comment 

period or for a public hearing item, please email cmpubliccomment@tooelecity.org anytime up until the start of 

the meeting.  Emails will be read at the designated points in the meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call 

3. Mayor’s Community Recognition Awards 

Presented by Debbie Winn, Mayor 

4. Public Comment Period 

5. Public Hearing & Motion on Resolution 2023-46 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Adopting a 

Proposed Tax Rate for Fiscal Year 2023-2024  

Presented by Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 

6. Public Hearing & Motion on Resolution 2023-47 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Adopting a 

Tentative Budget for Tooele City for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

Presented by Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 

7. Public Hearing & Motion on Resolution 2023-48 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving 

Budget Amendments for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

Presented by Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 

8. Public Hearing & Motion on Ordinance 2023-30 An Ordinance of Tooele City Reassigning the Land 

Use Designation for Approximately 2 Acres of Property Located at 602 West 3 O’clock Drive From 

High Density Residential (HDR) to Regional Commercial (RC)  

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 

9. Public Hearing & Motion on Ordinance 2023-31 An Ordinance of Tooele City Reassigning the Land 

Use Designation for Approximately 0.39 Acres of Property Located at 105 East 1000 North From 

Regional Commercial (RC) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) 

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 

http://www.tooelecity.org/
http://www.utah.gov/
http://www.tooelecity.org/
https://www.youtube.com/@tooelecity
mailto:cmpubliccomment@tooelecity.org


 

 
90 North Main Street | Tooele, Utah 84074 

435-843-2113 | 435-843-2119 (fax) | www.tooelecity.org 

City Recorder’s Office 

Department  

10. Ordinance 2023-20 An Ordinance of Tooele City Reassigning the Zoning for Approximately 0.39 

Acres of Property Located at 60 South Main Street From GC General Commercial to MU-G Mixed Use 

General (was tabled on 05/03/2023) 

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 

11. Ordinance 2023-24 An Ordinance of Tooele City Amending the Tooele City Personnel Policies and 

Procedures Manual 

Presented by Kami Perkins, Human Resources Director 

12. Resolution 2023-38 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Adopting the Modified Public Employees 

Health Program (PEHP) IRC Section 125 Cafeteria Prototype Plan for Tooele City’s Cash-In-Lieu / 

Waiver Program 

Presented by Kami Perkins, Human Resources Director 

13. Resolution 2023-49 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving an Agreement with RH Borden 

and Company LLC for Sewer Line Transmissive Acoustics Assessment Services 

Presented by Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

14. Resolution 2023-50 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving an Agreement with TecServ, 

Inc. for Computer Network Maintenance Services 

Presented by Chris Nielson, IT Director 

15. Resolution 2023-51 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving a Change Order #2 with Broken 

Arrow Inc. for the 2022 Seventh Street Road and Utility Improvement Project 

Presented by Paul Hansen, City Engineer 

16. Invoices & Purchase Orders 

Presented by Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 

17. Minutes 

~June 7, 2023 City Council Work Meeting 

~June 7, 2023 City Council Business Meeting 

~June 7, 2023 MBA Business Meeting 

18. Adjourn 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

Michelle Y. Pitt, Tooele City Recorder 

 

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, Individuals Needing Special Accommodations Should Notify 

Michelle Y. Pitt, Tooele City Recorder, at 435-843-2111 or michellep@tooelecity.org, Prior to the Meeting. 

http://www.tooelecity.org/
mailto:michellep@tooelecity.org


TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 

RESOLUTION 2023-46 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING A PROPOSED TAX 
RATE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024. 

 
WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-6-133 requires cities to set by ordinance or resolution 

the real and personal property tax levy, or certified tax rate, for various municipal 
purposes; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the general tax rate has been calculated preliminarily by the Utah 

State Tax Commission to be .002301 for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (compared to 0.002411 
for Fiscal Year 2022-2023); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the actual certified tax rate will be established at the time of the City 

Council’s approval of the final Fiscal Year 2023-2024 budget, on August 2, 2023; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council proposes to not adopt the Tax Commission certified 
tax rate but to adopt the proposed tax rate for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 in order to prevent 
the historic decline of the certified tax rate; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council convened a public hearing on the proposed tax rate 

on June 21, 2023, together with the public hearing on the new tentative budget: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
the Tooele City proposed real and personal property tax levy, or proposed tax rate, is 
hereby set at 0.002411 for Fiscal Year 2023-2023. 

 
This Resolution shall become effective on the date of passage by authority of the 

Tooele City Charter. 
 

Passed this day of , 2023. 



 

TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 

 
 
 
 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 

 

ABSTAINING:    
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(For) (Against) 

 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
 
 
 

S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to form:    

Roger Evans Baker, Tooele City Attorney 



 

TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 

RESOLUTION 2023-47 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING A TENTATIVE 
BUDGET FOR TOOELE CITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024. 

 
WHEREAS, the Tooele City Council adopted the budget officer’s tentative budget 

for fiscal year 2023-2024 on May 3, 2023, and established June 21, 2023, as the date for 
a public hearing for the final budget, as required by U.C.A. Chapter 10-6; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council convened a public hearing on June 2 1 ,  2023, as 

required by U.C.A. §10-6-114; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt a new tentative budget based on a 
proposed increase in the certified tax rate; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council is required to adopt the final budget pursuant to 

U.C.A. §10-6-118 by June 30 or September 1, as applicable; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council will hold a truth-in-taxation public hearing on August 
2 , 2023, prior to adopting the final budget and new certified tax rate; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2023-2024 budget adoption process has followed the 

requirements of Utah Code Title 10, Chapter 6: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY  
COUNCIL that a new Tooele City tentative budget for fiscal year 2023-2024 is hereby 
adopted. 

 
This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon passage, without further 

publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
  day of , 2023. 



 

TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 

 
 
 
 

  

 

 

  _ 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 

 

ABSTAINING:_   
 

 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(For) (Against) 

 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
 
 
 

S E A L 
 
 
Approved as to form:    

Roger Evans Baker, City Attorney 



                               

TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-48 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING BUDGET 
AMENDMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds it necessary and prudent to re-open the 2022-
2023 fiscal year budget to make amendments, pursuant to U.C.A. §§10-6-124-128, in 
order to more efficiently utilize funds to be received, said amendments being shown in 
the attached Exhibit A; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council convened a duly-noticed public hearing on June 21, 
2023, pursuant to the requirements of U.C.A. §§10-6-113-114: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
the budget amendments for fiscal year 2022-2023 as shown on Exhibit A, which is 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, are hereby approved. 
 

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon passage, without further 
publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
 
 Passed this ____ day of __________________, 2023. 
  



                               

 
 
 TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
 
(For)             (Against) 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:   _________________________________ 
 
 
 
 MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
 
(For)             (Against) 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
 
 
 
   S E A L 
 
 
Fiscal Approval:  ______________________________ 
    Shannon Wimmer, Director of Finance 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ______________________________ 
    Roger Evans Baker, City Attorney  



                               

 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Budget Amendments 



                     TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 06/16/23

                                  BUDGET AMENDMENTS                               11:37 AM

                           FISCAL YEAR ENDING 06/30/2023

         ACCT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME CURRENT AMENDMENT AMENDED

ANIMAL CONTROL
64 10 3830 000 CONTRIBUTIONS - OTHER FUNDS (163,800) (220) (164,020) Donation used for medical care of two senior dogs

10 4253 482008 VACCINATIONS/NEUTER 4,200 220 4,420

FIRE DEPARTMENT
65 10 3890 000 APPROPRIATION FUND BALANCE (2,715,234) (10,000) (2,725,234) Fire Department utility overages

10 4222 281000 ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER 3,000 2,000 5,000
10 4222 282000 QUESTAR GAS 6,500 8,000 14,500

POLICE DEPARTMENT
66 10 3830 000 CONTRIBUTIONS - OTHER FUNDS (164,020) (11,450) (175,470) Transfer SWAC Donations to expense account for FY23 expenses

10 4211 481100 SHOP WITH A COP 0 11,450 11,450

AQUATIC CENTER
67 10 3830 000 CONTRIBUTIONS - OTHER FUNDS (175,470) (2,050) (177,520) Tooele Swim Club fees transfer to cover expenses

10 4562 483019 TSC SWIM CLUB 0 2,050 2,050

POLICE DEPARTMENT
68 10 3830 000 CONTRIBUTIONS - OTHER FUNDS (177,520) (5,200) (182,720) Transfer for police department vending expenses from vending revenue

10 4211 481010 VENDING 0 5,200 5,200

ADMINISTRATION
69 10 3830 000 CONTRIBUTIONS - OTHER FUNDS (182,720) (7,108) (189,828) Mayor's Golf Tournament proceeds to expense to cover tournament expenses

10 4131 541000 COMMUNITY EVENTS 21,300 7,108 28,408

ANIMAL SHELTER
70 10 3830 000 CONTRIBUTIONS - OTHER FUNDS (189,828) (1,475) (191,303) Transfer from trust fund to cover adoption and spay/neuter fees

10 4253 252000 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 22,800 1,475 24,275

ANIMAL SHELTER
71 10 3830 000 CONTRIBUTIONS - OTHER FUNDS (191,303) (4,200) (195,503) Transfer from trust fund to cover adoption and spay/neuter fees

10 4253 482008 VACCINATIONS/NEUTER 4,200 4,200 8,400

AQUATIC CENTER
72 10 3890 000 APPROPRIATION FUND BALANCE (2,725,234) (15,700) (2,740,934) Emergency leisure pool drain grate repair

10 4562 252000 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 85,000 15,700 100,700



AQUATIC CENTER
73 10 3890 000 APPROPRIATION FUND BALANCE (2,740,934) (19,775) (2,760,709) Repair drain and floor in life guard room and storage room

10 4562 271000 BUILDING OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 42,000 19,775 61,775

GOLF COURSE
74 10 3471 105 GOLF - CONCESSIONS & RESALE (95,000) (25,000) (120,000) Golf resale and concession items expenses covered by additional revenue from sales

10 4565 482013 RESALE ITEMS/CONCESSIONS 50,000 25,000 75,000

CEMETERY
75 10 3890 000 APPROPRIATION FUND BALANCE (2,760,709) (6,800) (2,767,509) Failed drive approach repair and lot markers

10 4590 252000 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 32,352 6,800 39,152

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
76 75 3890 000 APPROPRIATION FUND BALANCE (3,722,297) (59,100) (3,781,397) RDA professional & technical expenses

75 4621 311000 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL 100,000 59,100 159,100

ADMINISTRATION
77 10 3416 106 ADMINISTRATION/SUNDRY FEES (20,000) (12,000) (32,000) Downtown Fest and buffalo art paid from revenue for buffaloes

10 4131 483024 DOWNTOWN ALLIANCE 500 12,000 12,500

NON-DEPARTMENTAL
78 10 3312 123 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUNDS 0 (185,390) (185,390) Expend ARPA funds Murdock impact fees and Boys & Girls Club permits

10 4150 481009 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT EXPENSES 786,450 185,390 971,840

NON-DEPARTMENTAL
79 10 3890 000 APPROPRIATION FUND BALANCE (2,767,509) (48,115) (2,815,624) Adjust insurance budget to actual amount

10 4150 511000 INSURANCE 270,000 48,115 318,115

SHOPS
80 10 3890 000 APPROPRIATION FUND BALANCE (2,815,624) (7,500) (2,823,124) Shops operation & maintenance to actual

10 4440 252000 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 38,000 7,500 45,500

LIBRARY
81 10 3340 111 UTAH STATE LIBRARY GRANTS (38,372) (5,000) (43,372) Utah State library grant received

10 4580 486087 UTAH STATE GRANTS 9,454 5,000 14,454

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
82 10 3890 000 APPROPRIATION FUND BALANCE (2,823,124) (5,000) (2,828,124) Medical insurance to actual

10 4620 132000 MEDICAL & LIFE INSURANCE 160,548 5,000 165,548

SOLID WASTE
83 53 3770 530 WASTE  COLLECTION FEES 1,750,000 (21,000) 1,729,000 Garbage cans purchases FY23 to actual

53 5300 481000 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 135,000 21,000 156,000



SOLID WASTE
84 53 3770 531 RECYCLING COLLECTION FEES (210,000) (15,000) (225,000) Recycling hauling fees and dump fees to actual

53 5350 621000 HAULING FEE 210,000 10,000 220,000
53 5350 621000 HAULING FEE 25,000 5,000 30,000

NON-DEPARTMENTAL
85 10 3312 123 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUNDS (185,390) (1,945,809) (2,131,199) ARPA funds budget corrections

10 3890 000 APPROPRIATION FUND BALANCE (2,828,124) 945,809 (1,882,315)
10 4810 911041 TRANSFER - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (41) 3,248,749 1,000,000 4,248,749
41 3813 000 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND (10) (3,248,749) (1,000,000) (4,248,749)



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

ORDINANCE 2023-30 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF TOOELE CITY REASSIGNING THE LAND USE DESIGNATION 
FOR APPROXIMATELY 2 ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 602 WEST 3 
O’CLOCK DRIVE FROM HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (HDR) TO REGIONAL 
COMMERCIAL (RC). 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-9a-401, et seq., requires and provides for the 
adoption of a “comprehensive, long-range plan” (hereinafter the “General Plan”) by each 
Utah city and town, which General Plan contemplates and provides direction for (a) 
“present and future needs of the community” and (b) “growth and development of all or 
any part of the land within the municipality”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Tooele City General Plan includes various elements, including 
water, sewer, transportation, and land use.  The Tooele City Council adopted the Land 
Use Element of the Tooele City General Plan, after duly-noticed public hearings, by 
Ordinance 2020-47, on December 16, 2020, by a vote of 5-0; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land Use Element (hereinafter the “Land Use Plan”) of the 
General Plan establishes Tooele City’s general land use policies, which have been 
adopted by Ordinance 2020-47 as a Tooele City ordinance, and which set forth 
appropriate Use Designations for land in Tooele City (e.g., residential, commercial, 
industrial, open space); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land Use Plan reflects the findings of Tooele City’s elected 
officials regarding the appropriate range, placement, and configuration of land uses 
within the City, which findings are based in part upon the recommendations of land use 
and planning professionals, Planning Commission recommendations, public comment, 
and other relevant considerations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-9a-501, et seq., provides for the enactment of “land 
use [i.e., zoning] ordinances and a zoning map” that constitute a portion of the City’s 
regulations (hereinafter “Zoning”) for land use and development, establishing order and 
standards under which land may be developed in Tooele City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a fundamental purpose of the Land Use Plan is to guide and inform 
the recommendations of the Planning Commission and the decisions of the City Council 
about the Zoning designations assigned to land within the City (e.g., R1-10 residential, 
neighborhood commercial (NC), light industrial (LI)); and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City received an Amendment Petition for Land Use Map 
amendment for 2 acres of property located at 602 West 3 O’Clock Drive on May 2, 
2023, requesting that the Subject Property be reassigned from the HDR Land Use 
designation to the RC Regional Commercial Land Use designation (see Amendment 
Petition and map attached as Exhibit A, and Staff Report attached as Exhibit B); and, 

 



WHEREAS, the Subject Properties are owned by Leisure Villas and are currently 
designated as High Density Residential in the Land Use Element of the General Plan; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the High Density Residential land use designation includes the MR-8, 
MR-12, MR-16 and MR-20 Multi-Family Residential Zoning districts; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the MR Multi-Family Residential zones permit exclusively three or more 
attached residential units such as townhomes, condominiums and apartments; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Regional Commercial land use designation includes the RC 

Regional Commercial and the RD Research and Development commercial zoning districts; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 14, 2023, the Planning Commission convened a duly 
noticed public hearing, accepted written and verbal comment, and voted to forward its 
recommendation to the City Council (see Planning Commission minutes attached as 
Exhibit C); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 21, 2023, the City Council convened a duly-noticed public 
hearing: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that: 

1. this Ordinance and the Land Use Map amendment proposed therein is in the 
best interest of the City in that it will create additional opportunities for 
employment of City residents and provide an expansion to the City’s commercial 
tax base; and, 

2. the Land Use map is hereby amended reassigning the Land Use designation to 
Regional Commercial for approximately 2 acres of property located at 602 West 
3 O’Clock Drive, according to the map attached as Exhibit A and staff report 
attached as Exhibit B. 

  

 This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health, 
safety, or welfare of Tooele City and shall become effective immediately upon passage, 
without further publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordinance is passed by the Tooele City Council 
this ____ day of _______________, 20__. 



 
TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 

(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ____________________________ 
    Roger Baker, Tooele City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Petition and Mapping Pertinent to Zoning Map 
Amendment 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

MAPPING PERTINENT TO THE WAGSTAFF INVESTMENTS LLC TOOELE SOUTH 
LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 
 
 

Staff Report 



 

 
Wagstaff Investments LLC Tooele South  App. # P23-483 
Land Use Map Amendment Request 1  

Community Development Department 
 

STAFF REPORT 
June 8, 2023

 
To: Tooele City Planning Commission 

Business Date:  June 14, 2023 
 
From: Planning Division 

Community Development Department 
 
Prepared By: Andrew Aagard, City Planner / Zoning Administrator 
 
Re: Wagstaff Investments LLC Tooele South – Land Use Map Amendment Request 

Application No.: P23-483 
Applicant: Brent Neel, representing Wagstaff Investments, LLC 
Project Location: Approximately 602 West 3 O'Clock Drive 
Zoning: MR-12 Multi-Family Residential Zone 
Acreage: 2 Acres (Approximately 87,120 ft2) 
Request: Request for approval of a Land Use Map Amendment to re-assign 

approximately 2 acres of property from the High Density Residential (HDR) 
land use to the Regional Commercial (RC) land use designation. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Land Use Map Amendment for approximately 2 acres 
located at approximately 602 West 3 O'Clock Drive.  The property is currently zoned MR-12 Multi-
Family Residential.  The applicant is requesting that the land use designation be re-assigned from HDR to 
RC in order to facilitate a Zoning Map amendment to a zoning district that will ultimately permit the 
construction of a Holiday Oil convenience store with gasoline services.     
 
ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan and Zoning.  The Land Use Map of the General Plan calls for the High Density Residential 
land use designation for the subject property.  The property has been assigned the MR-12 Multi-Family 
Residential zoning classification, supporting approximately 12 dwelling units per acre.  The MR-12 
Multi-Family Residential zoning designation is identified by the General Plan as a preferred zoning 
classification for the High Density Residential land use designation.  Properties to the north and west are 
currently zoned R1-7 Residential.  Properties to the south are zoned MR-12 and properties to the east are 
zoned R1-7 and RR-1 Residential.  Mapping pertinent to the subject request can be found in Exhibit “A” 
to this report. 
 
Tooele City ordinance 7-1A-5 requires that amendments to the zoning map shall be “consistent with the 
adopted Tooele City General Plan.”  There are many elements to the General Plan that need to be 
considered but when it comes to Zoning Map amendments the element is the Land Use Map of the 
General Plan.  Thus, before any zoning changes can be considered the proposed zoning change must first 
comply with the Land Use Map.   
 
The applicant is proposing that approximately two acres of property highlighted in red on the attached 
aerial photograph and included maps be re-assigned from the HDR land use designation to the RC land 
use.  The applicant wishes to ultimately construct a Holiday Oil convenience store with gasoline services 
on the property. 



 

 
Wagstaff Investments LLC Tooele South  App. # P23-483 
Land Use Map Amendment Request 2  

The property is current designated as HDR, a land use designation that is specific to multi-family 
residential.  This land use designation enables the MR-8, MR-12, MR-16 and MR-20 zoning districts.  
Each of these zones permits the construction of multi-family residential dwellings of 3 attached units or 
more including townhomes, condominiums and rental apartments.  These zones do not permit the 
construction of single-family residential or duplex type housing.  These zones also prohibit commercial 
and industrial uses.   
 
The RC designation is regional commercial and it is specific to the RC Regional Commercial and RD 
Research and Development zoning districts.  These zones are oriented towards commercial uses that 
would be considered to involve more of a regional network.  Higher end commercial, business parks, 
research parks and educational facilities are common uses found in areas with the RC land use 
designation.  Residential of all types, other than a few minor exceptions for caretaker apartments, are 
prohibited in RC areas.   
 
This property was originally zoned NC Neighborhood Commercial.  It was only rezoned to MR-12 within 
the last year and a half as it was anticipated the property would develop as townhomes.  Economic 
reasons and water availability have altered the plans of the developers who pursued those zoning map 
amendments and the property is again on the market for sale.  It should be noted that a convenience store 
with gasoline services requires a CUP in the RC Regional Commercial zone as well as the NC 
Neighborhood Commercial zone.  If the Regional Commercial land use designation is determined to be 
too intense for this area the Planning Commission may also forward an alternative recommendation.  The 
NC Neighborhood Commercial zone falls under the Community Commercial land use designation.   
 
A Land Use Map amendment is the right time to consider the highest and best use for a particular parcel 
of land and if that use is in the best interest of the City.  The south end of the City could use a gasoline 
station as the closest other facility is the Gofer foods, about two miles to the east.  Attempts have been 
made to develop the properties as multi-family residential and those attempts have not been successful.   
 
It should be noted that the Land Use map was just recently amended for this property.  However, the 
Tooele City code does not place restrictions on the number of times a property can be re-assigned land 
use or zoning, nor does the code prohibit the City from re-assigning the land use back to what it was 
previously.  Land Use map amendments are legislative in nature and this enable a City to make land use 
determinations decisions whenever necessary or as circumstances change.   
 
Traffic Studies.  Previous developers attempting to develop these properties as town homes conducted 
traffic studies to determine what improvements, if any, to SR-36 and 3 O’Clock Drive would be needed to 
ease traffic concerns on these streets and to mitigate any potential impacts to road systems generated by 
new residential development.  The traffic studies confirmed that new development on these parcels did 
not warrant any changes to SR-36 or 3 O’Clock Drive.   
 
This use, however, is not residential and may have different traffic parameters that need to be considered.  
One of those being a potential access onto Coleman Street located to the north east.  Location of this 
access and safety concerns of an access at this point will need to be addressed.  At this point the applicant 
has not provided a traffic study addressing the impacts of a commercial gasoline station on the existing 
road systems or the potential access to Coleman Street.   
 
Site Plan Layout.  A site plan has not been provided.   
 
Subdivision Layout.  This is an existing parcel of record.     
 
 



 

 
Wagstaff Investments LLC Tooele South  App. # P23-483 
Land Use Map Amendment Request 3  

Criteria For Approval.  The criteria for review and potential approval of a Land Use Map Amendment 
request is found in Section 7-1A-3 of the Tooele City Code.  This section depicts the standard of review 
for such requests as: 
 

(1) In considering a proposed amendment to the Tooele City General Plan, the 
applicant shall identify, and the City Staff, Planning Commission, and City 
Council may consider, the following factors, among others: 

(a) The effect of the proposed amendment on the character of the surrounding area; 
(b) Consistency with the General Plan Land Use Map and the goals and policies of 

the General Plan and its separate elements; 
(c) Consistency and compatibility with the existing uses of adjacent and nearby 

properties; 
(d) Consistency and compatibility with the possible future uses of adjoining and 

nearby properties as identified by the General Plan; 
(e) The suitability of the properties for the uses requested viz. a viz. the suitability of 

the properties for the uses identified by the General Plan; and 
(f) The overall community benefit of the proposed amendment. 

 
REVIEWS 
 
Planning Division Review.   The Tooele City Planning Division has completed their review of the Land 
Use Map Amendment submission and has issued the following comments regarding this request: 
 

1. Traffic studies conducted previously were done under the assumption the properties 
would develop as multi-family residential townhomes.   

2. There are no limitations on the number of times a City may consider a Land Use Map 
amendment and no limitations on the City re-assigning a land use designation back to 
what the property was previously designated.   

3. This Land Use Map amendment does not grant zoning approvals.  The applicant will still 
need to conduct a Zoning Map amendment application.   

 
Engineering and Public Works Divisions Review.   The Tooele City Engineering and Public Works 
Divisions have completed their reviews of the Land Use Map Amendment submission and have issued 
the following comment: 
 

1. An access onto Coleman Street will require a traffic study to confirm location and safety 
of an access at that location.  

 
Tooele City Fire Department Review.  The Tooele City Fire Department has completed their review of the 
Land Use Map Amendment submission and has not issued any comments concerning this request.  
 
Noticing.  The applicant has expressed their desire to re-assign the land use for the subject property and 
do so in a manner which is compliant with the City Code.  As such, notice has been properly issued in the 
manner outlined in the City and State Codes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Wagstaff Investments LLC Tooele South  App. # P23-483 
Land Use Map Amendment Request 4  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission carefully weigh this request for a Land Use Map 
Amendment according to the appropriate tenets of the Utah State Code and the Tooele City Code, 
particularly Section 7-1A-7(1) and render a decision in the best interest of the community with any 
conditions deemed appropriate and based on specific findings to address the necessary criteria for making 
such decisions. 
 
Potential topics for findings that the Commission should consider in rendering a decision: 
 

1. The effect of the proposed application on the character of the surrounding area. 
2. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the intent, goals, and 

objectives of any applicable master plan. 
3. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the intent, goals, and 

objectives of the Tooele City General Plan. 
4. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the requirements and 

provisions of the Tooele City Code. 
5. The suitability of the properties for the uses proposed.  
6. The degree to which the proposed application will or will not be deleterious to the health, 

safety, and general welfare of the general public or the residents of adjacent properties. 
7. The degree to which the proposed application conforms to the general aesthetic and 

physical development of the area. 
8. Whether a change in the uses allowed for the affected properties will unduly affect the 

uses or proposed uses for adjoining and nearby properties. 
9. The overall community benefit of the proposed amendment. 
10. Whether or not public services in the area are adequate to support the subject 

development. 
11. Other findings the Commission deems appropriate to base their decision upon for the 

proposed application. 
 

MODEL MOTIONS  
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 
City Council for the Wagstaff Investments LLC Tooele South Land Use Map Amendment request by 
Brent Neel, representing Wagstaff Investments, LLC to re-assign the land use from High Density 
Residential to Regional Commercial, application number P23-483, based on the findings listed in the 
Staff Report dated June 8, 2023:” 
 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 
 
Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to the 
City Council for the Wagstaff Investments LLC Tooele South Land Use Map Amendment request by 
Brent Neel, representing Wagstaff Investments, LLC to re-assign the land use from High Density 
Residential to Regional Commercial, application number P23-483, based on the following findings:” 
 

1. List findings… 
       

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

APPLICANT SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit C 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Minutes 
 



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

ORDINANCE 2023-31 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF TOOELE CITY REASSIGNING THE LAND USE DESIGNATION 
FOR APPROXIMATELY .39 ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 105 EAST 1000 
NORTH FROM REGIONAL COMMERCIAL (RC) TO MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL (MDR). 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-9a-401, et seq., requires and provides for the 
adoption of a “comprehensive, long-range plan” (hereinafter the “General Plan”) by each 
Utah city and town, which General Plan contemplates and provides direction for (a) 
“present and future needs of the community” and (b) “growth and development of all or 
any part of the land within the municipality”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Tooele City General Plan includes various elements, including 
water, sewer, transportation, and land use.  The Tooele City Council adopted the Land 
Use Element of the Tooele City General Plan, after duly-noticed public hearings, by 
Ordinance 2020-47, on December 16, 2020, by a vote of 5-0; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land Use Element (hereinafter the “Land Use Plan”) of the 
General Plan establishes Tooele City’s general land use policies, which have been 
adopted by Ordinance 2020-47 as a Tooele City ordinance, and which set forth 
appropriate Use Designations for land in Tooele City (e.g., residential, commercial, 
industrial, open space); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land Use Plan reflects the findings of Tooele City’s elected 
officials regarding the appropriate range, placement, and configuration of land uses 
within the City, which findings are based in part upon the recommendations of land use 
and planning professionals, Planning Commission recommendations, public comment, 
and other relevant considerations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-9a-501, et seq., provides for the enactment of “land 
use [i.e., zoning] ordinances and a zoning map” that constitute a portion of the City’s 
regulations (hereinafter “Zoning”) for land use and development, establishing order and 
standards under which land may be developed in Tooele City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a fundamental purpose of the Land Use Plan is to guide and inform 
the recommendations of the Planning Commission and the decisions of the City Council 
about the Zoning designations assigned to land within the City (e.g., R1-10 residential, 
neighborhood commercial (NC), light industrial (LI)); and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City received an Amendment Petition for Land Use Map 
amendment for approximately .39 acres of property located at 105 East 1000 North on 
May 18, 2023, requesting that the Subject Property be reassigned from the Regional 
Commercial Land Use designation to the Medium Density Residential Land Use designation 
(see Amendment Petition and map attached as Exhibit A, and Staff Report attached as 
Exhibit B); and, 



 
WHEREAS, the Subject Properties are owned by Betty S Johnson and Cindy 

McInnes and are currently designated as Regional Commercial in the Land Use Element of 
the General Plan; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Regional Commercial land use designation includes the RC 
Regional Commercial and RD Research and Development Zoning districts; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the RC and RD zones permit exclusively regional type of commercial 
uses, business and office parks, research facilities and educational land uses; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Medium Density Residential land use designation includes the R1-7, 

R1-8 and R1-10 residential zoning districts and are exclusive to single-family residential and 
duplex type residential uses; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it is the property owner’s intent to subdivide .39 acres from the larger 5.5 

acre parcel in order to maintain the existing home on its own lot and enable the sale of the 
remaining 5 acres for commercial purposes; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 14, 2023, the Planning Commission convened a duly 
noticed public hearing, accepted written and verbal comment, and voted to forward its 
recommendation to the City Council (see Planning Commission minutes attached as 
Exhibit C); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 21, 2023, the City Council convened a duly-noticed public 
hearing: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that: 

1. this Ordinance and the Land Use Map amendment proposed therein is in the 
best interest of the City in that it will create an opportunity for an existing resident 
to maintain ownership of their home on its own lot and enable the sale of the 
remaining 5 acres for commercial purposes; and, 

2. the Land Use map is hereby amended reassigning the Land Use designation to 
Medium Density Residential for approximately .39 acres of property located at 
105 East 1000 North, according to the map attached as Exhibit A and staff report 
attached as Exhibit B. 

  

 This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health, 
safety, or welfare of Tooele City and shall become effective immediately upon passage, 
without further publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordinance is passed by the Tooele City Council 
this ____ day of _______________, 20__. 



 
TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 

(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ____________________________ 
    Roger Baker, Tooele City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Petition and Mapping Pertinent to Zoning Map 
Amendment 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

MAPPING PERTINENT TO THE MCINNES LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 
 
 

Staff Report 



 

 
McInnes  App. # P23-454 
Land Use Map Amendment Request 1  

Community Development Department 
 

STAFF REPORT 
June 1, 2023

 
To: Tooele City Planning Commission 

Business Date:  June 14, 2023 
 
From: Planning Division 

Community Development Department 
 
Prepared By: Andrew Aagard, City Planner / Zoning Administrator 
 
Re: McInnes – Land Use Map Amendment Request 

Application No.: P23-454 
Applicant: Cindy McInnes  
Project Location: 105 East 1000 North 
Zoning: RR-1 Residential Zone 
Acreage: .39 Acres (Approximately 16,988 ft2) 
Request: Request for approval of a Land Use Map Amendment in the RR-1 

Residential zone regarding re-assigning the land use designation to Medium 
Density Residential (MDR). 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Land Use Map Amendment for approximately .39 acres 
located at approximately 105 East 1000 North.  The property is currently zoned RR-1 Residential.  The 
applicant is requesting that a Land Use Map Amendment be approved to re-assign the land use for the 
desired .39 acres to the MDR land use designation.  Changing the land use designation to MDR will 
enable consideration and possibly approval of a zoning change to R1-7, R1-8 or R1-10.  These zones 
permit smaller single-family residential lots.   
 
ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan and Zoning.  The Land Use Map of the General Plan calls for the Regional Commercial 
land use designation for the subject property.  The property has been assigned the RR-1 Residential 
zoning classification, supporting approximately one dwelling unit per acre.  The RR-1 Residential zoning 
designation is not identified by the General Plan as a preferred zoning classification for the Regional 
Commercial land use designation.  All properties surrounding the subject property are designated as 
Regional Commercial.  Mapping pertinent to the subject request can be found in Exhibit “A” to this 
report. 
 
The applicant’s home is currently located on a large 5.57 acre parcel of record.  The home is located at the 
south east corner of the parcel and fronts onto 1000 North with the front yard of the home aligning 
perfectly with 100 East.  The applicant wishes to subdivide a .39 acre parcel from the larger 5.57 acre 
parcel in order to maintain ownership of the home on its own lot and enable the sale and possible 
development of the larger 5 acre parcel.  In order to accomplish this a few land use approvals need to be 
obtained.   
 
In order to subdivide and create a .39 acre lot, zoning needs to be in place that will permit a lot to be as 
small as .39 acres.  The RR-1 zoning district which the property is currently zoned requires a minimum 
lot size of 1 acre.  The applicant could subdivide a 1 acre lot from the 5.57 acre parcel without conducting 



 

 
McInnes  App. # P23-454 
Land Use Map Amendment Request 2  

a Land Use Map and Zoning Map Amendment.  However, the applicant does not desire to maintain a 1 
acre lot and desires a smaller and more manageable lot size.  There are three residential zones that will 
permit a .39 acre lot.  Those zones are the R1-7, R1-8 and R1-10 permitting minimum lot sizes of 7,000, 
8,000 and 10,000 square feet, respectively.  Any one of these three zoning districts would accomplish the 
applicants desire of a .39 acre lot.   
 
Here in lies the need for the Land Use Map Amendment.  The property currently bears the RC land use 
designation.  The RC designation requires commercial zones and thus commercial development and does 
not permit residential development.  In order to obtain one of the three single-family residential zones that 
will permit a .39 acre lot the Land Use Map needs to be amended re-assigning the property from RC to 
MDR.  Once the MDR land use designation is re-assigned to MDR the applicant could then proceed with 
a Zoning Map amendment request for one of the three single-family residential zoning districts.   
 
In consideration of this Land Use Map amendment the Commission and City Council need to consider the 
future use of this property and also surrounding land uses, development patterns, traffic needs and so 
forth.  The entire area is currently designated as RC Regional Commercial.  The RC designation 
emphasizes and requires the RC Regional Commercial and the RD Research and Development zoning 
districts.  Both of these zoning districts are oriented towards larger, more regional type of commercial 
uses such as large scale commercial, research and business parks, office parks, etc  The property’s close 
proximity to SR-36, a regional transportation corridor and 1000 North, also a regional transportation 
corridor make this area a respectable candidate for large scale commercial type of business activity.  The 
proximity to these transportation corridors also brings into question the viability of single-family 
residential in the area.  One will also note that the property has one additional single-family residential 
use to its east.  All other surrounding land uses are commercial, industrial or office.  The nearest 
residential development is the Country View Villages retirement community located 500 feet to the east.   
 
The MDR land use designation is a land use that requires single-family and two-family residential.  The 
zones permitted in the MDR areas are the R1-7, R1-8 and R1-10 residential zones.  These zones do not 
permit any commercial other than the commercial activities that are permitted by Tooele City code as 
home occupations.  Even with a home occupation, the primary use of the structure is residential.   
 
It should also be noted that the property lines up directly with 100 East and is in a prime location for a 
point of ingress and egress if the larger 5 acre parcel were ever to develop.  The home in its current 
location would need to be removed or relocated in favor of full motion signalized access into the larger 5 
acre parcel.  If the home remains the access to the 5 acre parcel for future development becomes more 
complicated and limited by restrictions, planned medians, and alignment with other points of access.  The 
property owner has a right to maintain and keep their home where it is and this paragraph should not be 
construed to say otherwise or as a recommendation against the home staying.  Staff is just pointing out the 
particulars of the situation to help the Commission and City Council understand the situation that presents 
itself in this complicated area of the City.  City staff have personally met with the applicant and other 
property owners and have discussed the safety situation related to the intersection of 100 East and 1000 
North and discussed the installation of a traffic signal with the property owners, so they are aware of these 
issues.  
 
Subdivision Layout.  A subdivision plat has not been provided.  Ultimately, if the Land Use Map and 
Zoning map are amended as requested by the applicant, a subdivision will need to be conducted.  The 
Land Use Map and Zoning Map will then, at that time, be amended to accurately reflect the .39 acre lot.   
 
Criteria For Approval.  The criteria for review and potential approval of a Land Use Map Amendment 
request is found in Section 7-1A-3 of the Tooele City Code.  This section depicts the standard of review 
for such requests as: 



 

 
McInnes  App. # P23-454 
Land Use Map Amendment Request 3  

 
 (1) In considering a proposed amendment to the Tooele City General Plan, the applicant shall 

identify, and the City Staff, Planning Commission, and City Council may consider, the 
following factors, among others: 
(a) The effect of the proposed amendment on the character of the surrounding area; 
(b) Consistency with the General Plan Land Use Map and the goals and policies of 

the General Plan and its separate elements; 
(c) Consistency and compatibility with the existing uses of adjacent and nearby 

properties; 
(d) Consistency and compatibility with the possible future uses of adjoining and 

nearby properties as identified by the General Plan; 
(e) The suitability of the properties for the uses requested viz. a viz. the suitability of 

the properties for the uses identified by the General Plan; and 
(f) The overall community benefit of the proposed amendment. 

 
REVIEWS 
 
Planning Division Review.   The Tooele City Planning Division has completed their review of the Land 
Use Map Amendment submission and has issued the following comments: 
 

1. The property is surrounded entirely by commercial land uses. 
2. The property currently aligns with 100 East and will block the most ideal point of access 

for a commercial development at this location.   
3. The nearest residential development is 500 feet to the east.   
4. The .39 acre lot has not been created as the current zoning does not permit a lot size 

smaller than 1 acre.  
 
Engineering & Public Works Division Review.   The Tooele City Engineering and Public Works 
Divisions have completed their reviews of the Land Use Map Amendment submission and have issued 
the following comments: 
 

1. The home in its current location will have an impact on the City’s ability to turn this 
intersection into a signalized intersection.   

 
Tooele City Fire Department Review.  The Tooele City Fire Department has completed their review of the 
Land Use Map Amendment submission and has not issued any comment regarding the request.  
 
Noticing.  The applicant has expressed their desire to re-assign the land use designation for the subject 
property and do so in a manner which is compliant with the City Code.  As such, notice has been properly 
issued in the manner outlined in the City and State Codes. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission carefully weigh this request for a Land Use Map 
Amendment according to the appropriate tenets of the Utah State Code and the Tooele City Code, 
particularly Section 7-1A-7(1) and render a decision in the best interest of the community with any 
conditions deemed appropriate and based on specific findings to address the necessary criteria for making 
such decisions. 
 
Potential topics for findings that the Commission should consider in rendering a decision: 
 



 

 
McInnes  App. # P23-454 
Land Use Map Amendment Request 4  

1. The effect of the proposed application on the character of the surrounding area. 
2. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the intent, goals, and 

objectives of any applicable master plan. 
3. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the intent, goals, and 

objectives of the Tooele City General Plan. 
4. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the requirements and 

provisions of the Tooele City Code. 
5. The suitability of the properties for the uses proposed.  
6. The degree to which the proposed application will or will not be deleterious to the health, 

safety, and general welfare of the general public or the residents of adjacent properties. 
7. The degree to which the proposed application conforms to the general aesthetic and 

physical development of the area. 
8. Whether a change in the uses allowed for the affected properties will unduly affect the 

uses or proposed uses for adjoining and nearby properties. 
9. The overall community benefit of the proposed amendment. 
10. Whether or not public services in the area are adequate to support the subject 

development. 
11. Other findings the Commission deems appropriate to base their decision upon for the 

proposed application. 
 

MODEL MOTIONS  
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 
City Council for the McInnes Land Use Map Amendment request by Cindy McInnes, to re-assign the 
land use for approximately .39 acres from Regional Commercial to Medium Density Residential, 
application number P23-454, based on the findings and subject to the conditions listed in the Staff Report 
dated June 1, 2023:” 
 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 
 
Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to the 
City Council for the McInnes Land Use Map Amendment request by Cindy McInnes, to re-assign the 
land use for approximately .39 acres from Regional Commercial to Medium Density Residential, 
application number P23-454, based on the following findings:” 
 

1. List findings… 
       

 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit C 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Minutes 
 



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

ORDINANCE 2023 - 20 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF TOOELE CITY REASSIGNING THE ZONING FOR 
APPROXIMATELY 0.39 ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 60 SOUTH MAIN 
STREET FROM GC GENERAL COMMERCIAL TO MU-G MIXED USE GENERAL. 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-9a-401, et seq., requires and provides for the 
adoption of a “comprehensive, long-range plan” (hereinafter the “General Plan”) by each 
Utah city and town, which General Plan contemplates and provides direction for (a) 
“present and future needs of the community” and (b) “growth and development of all or 
any part of the land within the municipality”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Tooele City General Plan includes various elements, including 
water, sewer, transportation, and land use.  The Tooele City Council adopted the Land 
Use Element of the Tooele City General Plan, after duly-noticed public hearings, by 
Ordinance 2020-47, on December 16, 2020, by a vote of 5-0; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land Use Element (hereinafter the “Land Use Plan”) of the 
General Plan establishes Tooele City’s general land use policies, which have been 
adopted by Ordinance 2020-47 as a Tooele City ordinance, and which set forth 
appropriate Use Designations for land in Tooele City (e.g., residential, commercial, 
industrial, open space); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land Use Plan reflects the findings of Tooele City’s elected 
officials regarding the appropriate range, placement, and configuration of land uses 
within the City, which findings are based in part upon the recommendations of land use 
and planning professionals, Planning Commission recommendations, public comment, 
and other relevant considerations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-9a-501, et seq., provides for the enactment of “land 
use [i.e., zoning] ordinances and a zoning map” that constitute a portion of the City’s 
regulations (hereinafter “Zoning”) for land use and development, establishing order and 
standards under which land may be developed in Tooele City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a fundamental purpose of the Land Use Plan is to guide and inform 
the recommendations of the Planning Commission and the decisions of the City Council 
about the Zoning designations assigned to land within the City (e.g., R1-10 residential, 
neighborhood commercial (NC), light industrial (LI)); and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City received an Amendment Petition for a Zoning Map 
amendment for .39 acres of property located at 60 South Main Street on April 10, 2023, 
requesting that the Subject Property be reassigned from the GC General Commercial 
zoning district to the MU-G Mixed Use General zoning district (see Amendment Petition and 
map attached as Exhibit A, and Staff Report attached as Exhibit B); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Subject Property is owned by Holly Jones and is currently zoned GC 



General Commercial; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the subject property is currently designated as Mixed Use on the Land 

Use Map of the Tooele City General Plan and all zoning map amendments shall comply with 
the Land Use Map of the General Plan; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Mixed Use land use designation includes the MU-G Mixed Use 
General and the MU-B Mixed Broadway zoning districts; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the petition to reassign the zoning to the MU-G Mixed Use General is in 

compliance with the Mixed Use designation of the Land Use Map; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 26, 2023, the Planning Commission convened a duly 
noticed public hearing, accepted written and verbal comment, and voted to forward its 
recommendation to the City Council (see Planning Commission minutes attached as 
Exhibit C); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 3, 2023, the City Council convened a duly-noticed public 
hearing: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that: 

1. this Ordinance and the Zoning Map amendment proposed therein is in the best 
interest of the City in that it will create additional opportunities for employment of 
City residents and provide additional opportunities for housing in the City’s 
downtown area and residential facilities for treatment and housing of the 
disabled; and, 

2. the Zoning Map is hereby amended reassigning the zoning to MU-G Mixed Use 
General for approximately 0.39 acres of property located at 60 South Main 
Street, according to the map attached as Exhibit A and staff report attached as 
Exhibit B. 

  

 This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health, 
safety, or welfare of Tooele City and shall become effective immediately upon passage, 
without further publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordinance is passed by the Tooele City Council 
this ____ day of _______________, 20__. 



 
TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 

(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ____________________________ 
    Roger Baker, Tooele City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Petition and Mapping Pertinent to Zoning Map 
Amendment 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

MAPPING PERTINENT TO THE BEACON HOUSE ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

APPLICANT SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
 
 









 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 
 
 

Staff Report 



 

 
Beacon House  App. # P23-333 
Zoning Map Amendment Request 1  

Community Development Department 
 

STAFF REPORT 
April 17, 2023

 
To: Tooele City Planning Commission 

Business Date:  April 26, 2023 
 
From: Planning Division 

Community Development Department 
 
Prepared By: Andrew Aagard, City Planner / Zoning Administrator 
 
Re: Beacon House – Zoning Map Amendment Request 

Application No.: P23-333 
Applicant: Holly Jones  
Project Location: 60 South Main Street 
Zoning: GC General Commercial Zone 
Acreage: .39 Acres (Approximately 16,988 ft2) 
Request: Request for approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to re-assign the zoning 

from GC General Commercial to MU-G Mixed Use General.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Zoning Map Amendment for approximately .39 acres 
located at approximately 60 South Main Street.  The property is currently zoned GC General Commercial.  
The applicant is requesting that a Zoning Map Amendment be approved to re-assign the property from the 
GC General Commercial zoning district to the MU-G Mixed Use General zoning district.    
 
ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan and Zoning.  The Land Use Map of the General Plan calls for the Mixed Use land use 
designation for the subject property.  The property has been assigned the GC General Commercial zoning 
classification.  The GC General Commercial zoning designation is not identified by the General Plan as a 
preferred zoning classification for the Mixed Use land use designation.  All properties surrounding the 
subject property are currently zoned GC General Commercial.  Mapping pertinent to the subject request 
can be found in Exhibit “A” to this report. 
 
The applicant completed a Land Use Map amendment in March of 2023 where the subject property’s land 
use designation was changed from Community Commercial to Mixed Use.  This Zoning Map amendment 
is the follow-up to that application and proposes to re-assign the zoning to MU-G Mixed Use General.   
 
The applicant is requesting the zoning be re-assigned in order to conduct the use of “Residential 
Treatment Facility” inside of the existing structure.  Facilities such as this are not permitted in the GC 
General Commercial zone but are permitted as a conditional use in the MU-G zone.  It is the applicant’s 
intention to convert the upper two floors of the building into a facility that provides residential treatment 
to those needing care related to addiction recovery and other related issues.   
 
The GC zoning district is a zone that is specific to local commercial activities and uses.  Typical uses in 
this zone are retail, business and professional offices, food services, entertainment, and personal services.  
Residential uses are extremely limited, usually to situations of a caretaker apartment associated with a 
hotel or similar use.   



 

 
Beacon House  App. # P23-333 
Zoning Map Amendment Request 2  

The MU-G zone is a hybrid of the GC zone and all residential zones.  The MU-G zone permits many, 
though not all, of the commercial uses currently permitted in the GC zone.  However, almost all 
commercial uses in the MU-G zone require a conditional use permit.  The MU-G zone also permits single 
family residential, duplexes and multi-family residential permitting a maximum unit density of up to 16 
units per acre for multi-family.   
 
The property also currently has an overlay attached to it known as the Downtown Overlay.  The Tooele 
City Downtown Overlay District (DO) is formulated to encourage and provide opportunities for various 
retail, service and other uses within the existing Main Street “downtown” area of the City. This area is 
generally characterized and recognized by two story buildings constructed to the front property line. It is 
the goal of the Downtown Overlay to recognize the existing development pattern of the area and allow for 
the strengthening of the character, vitality and amenities of the Downtown area through specific 
downtown site planning and building standards and requirements. The Downtown Overlay District (DO) 
allows and requires the establishment of uses that work to reinforce the existing Main Street through 
special standards for building location, parking, uses, signage and other considerations.  Please note that 
the Downtown Overlay does not have any bearing on the uses permitted in the zoning district.  Uses are 
determined by the GC General Commercial zoning district or by the Mixed Use General zoning district if 
approved, not by the overlay itself.  The downtown overlay will not be affected if the zoning is changed 
and will remain in tact as is.   
 
It should be noted and emphasized that when a zoning is re-assigned that all uses permitted within that 
zone then become entitled for that property.  If the zoning is changed to MU-G all uses, including 
residential, would be entitled for this property.  The applicant as the property owner has the right to 
change the plans, sell the property or convert to a different use permissible in the MU-G zone.   
 
The question of spot zoning may come to the Commission’s minds as, if the zoning is changed, the 
property would be a single parcel of MU-G surrounded on all sides by properties zoned GC.  Yes, this is a 
spot zone.  However, spot zoning is not illegal and, contrary to popular belief, spot zoning is a valuable 
tool that City’s have to limit uses to some areas and permit other uses in other areas that need them or that 
can benefit from them.  Don’t look at the spot zone as a problem but try to see it as a tool in your tool 
belts for molding certain areas of a City to specific land use types.   
 
Site Plan Layout.  A site plan has not been submitted as this is an existing structure and site.  The aerial 
view provided in this staff report provides details for the site.   
 
Subdivision Layout.  This is an existing parcel of record and is not included in a subdivision plat.     
 
Criteria For Approval.  The criteria for review and potential approval of a Zoning Map Amendment 
request is found in Section 7-1A-7 of the Tooele City Code.  This section depicts the standard of review 
for such requests as: 
 

 (1) No amendment to the Zoning Ordinance or Zoning Districts Map may be recommended 
by the Planning Commission or approved by the City Council unless such amendment or 
conditions thereto are consistent with the General Plan.  In considering a Zoning 
Ordinance or Zoning Districts Map amendment, the applicant shall identify, and the City 
Staff, Planning Commission, and City Council may consider, the following factors, 
among others: 
(a) The effect of the proposed amendment on the character of the surrounding area. 
(b) Consistency with the goals and policies of the General Plan and the General Plan 

Land Use Map. 



 

 
Beacon House  App. # P23-333 
Zoning Map Amendment Request 3  

(c) Consistency and compatibility with the General Plan Land Use Map for 
adjoining and nearby properties. 

(d) The suitability of the properties for the uses proposed viz. a. viz. the suitability of 
the properties for the uses identified by the General Plan. 

(e) Whether a change in the uses allowed for the affected properties will unduly 
affect the uses or proposed uses for adjoining and nearby properties. 

(f) The overall community benefit of the proposed amendment. 
 

REVIEWS 
 
Planning Division Review.   The Tooele City Planning Division has completed their review of the Zoning 
Map Amendment submission and has issued the following comments: 
 

1. This request is a spot zone, but, spot zones are not illegal and can be utilized by City’s to 
determine where they want to put specific land uses.   

2. The MU-G zoning district permits all forms of residential housing.   
3. This is an existing built out site so there is not any new external development proposed 

on the site.   
 
Engineering and Public Works Review.   The Tooele City Engineering and Public Works Divisions have 
completed their review of the Zoning Map Amendment submission and have not issued any comments. 
 
Tooele City Fire Department Review.  The Tooele City Fire Department has completed their review of the 
Zoning Map Amendment submission and has not issued any comments.   
 
Noticing.  The applicant has expressed their desire to rezone the subject property and do so in a manner 
which is compliant with the City Code.  As such, notice has been properly issued in the manner outlined 
in the City and State Codes. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission carefully weigh this request for a Land Use Map 
Amendment according to the appropriate tenets of the Utah State Code and the Tooele City Code, 
particularly Section 7-1A-7(1) and render a decision in the best interest of the community with any 
conditions deemed appropriate and based on specific findings to address the necessary criteria for making 
such decisions. 
 
Potential topics for findings that the Commission should consider in rendering a decision: 
 

1. The effect of the proposed application on the character of the surrounding area. 
2. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the intent, goals, and 

objectives of any applicable master plan. 
3. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the intent, goals, and 

objectives of the Tooele City General Plan. 
4. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the requirements and 

provisions of the Tooele City Code. 
5. The suitability of the properties for the uses proposed.  
6. The degree to which the proposed application will or will not be deleterious to the health, 

safety, and general welfare of the general public or the residents of adjacent properties. 
7. The degree to which the proposed application conforms to the general aesthetic and 

physical development of the area. 



 

 
Beacon House  App. # P23-333 
Zoning Map Amendment Request 4  

8. Whether a change in the uses allowed for the affected properties will unduly affect the 
uses or proposed uses for adjoining and nearby properties. 

9. The overall community benefit of the proposed amendment. 
10. Whether or not public services in the area are adequate to support the subject 

development. 
11. Other findings the Commission deems appropriate to base their decision upon for the 

proposed application. 
 

MODEL MOTIONS  
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 
City Council for the Beacon House Zoning Map Amendment request by Holly Jones, re-assigning the 
zoning for .39 acres from the GC General Commercial zone to the MU-G Mixed Use General zone, 
application number P23-333, based on the findings and subject to the conditions listed in the Staff Report 
dated April 17, 2023:” 
 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 
 
Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to the 
City Council for the Beacon House Zoning Map Amendment request by Holly Jones, re-assigning the 
zoning for .39 acres from the GC General Commercial zone to the MU-G Mixed Use General zone, 
application number P23-333, based on the following findings:” 
 

1. List findings… 
       

 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit C 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Minutes 
 



 

Page | 1  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Tooele City Planning Commission 

Business Meeting Minutes 

 

Date: Wednesday, April 26, 2023 

Time: 7:00 p.m. 

Place: Tooele City Hall Council Chambers 

90 North Main Street, Tooele Utah 

 

Commission Members Present: 

Melanie Hammer 

Jon Proctor  

Chris Sloan 

Matt Robinson 

Weston Jensen 

Melodi Gochis 

Alison Dunn  

 

Commission Members Excused: 

Tyson Hamilton 

Doug Newel 

 

City Council Members Present:  

Ed Hansen 

Maresa Manzione 

 

City Employees Present: 

Andrew Aagard, City Planner 

Paul Hansen, City Engineer 

Roger Baker, City Attorney  

Darwin Cook, Parks and Recreation Director 

Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director  

 

Minutes prepared by Katherin Yei 

 

Commissioner Sloan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 

1.Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Dunn.    

 

2. Roll Call 

Melanie Hammer, Present 

Jon Proctor, Present 

Matt Robinson, Present 

Weston Jensen, Present 

Chris Sloan, Present 



 

Page | 2  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Melodi Gochis, Present  

Alison Dunn, Present 

Doug Newell, Excused 

Tyson Hamilton, Excused 

 

3. Public Hearing and Decision on a Conditional Use Permit request by Natsu Healthcare 

to authorize the use of “Residential Treatment Facility” for properties located at 491 South 

Main Street and 461 South Main Street on 2.5 acres in the MU-G Mixed Use General 

zoning district. 

 

Mr. Aagard presented a Conditional Use Permit for Residential Treatment Facilities at 491 South 

Main Street and 461 South Main Street. The two hotel buildings will be converted to treatments 

centers. The property is Mixed-Use General, allowing a mix of commercial and residential uses. 

There is existing fencing on the site. Notices were sent out to property owners within 200 feet of 

the property. Staff is recommending approval with two conditions listed in the staff report. The 

applicant is willing to comply with all conditions.  

 

The public hearing was opened.  

 

Jeremy Harris shared concerns and asked questions on behalf of himself and local business  

Additional fencing, public access/open campus, security around property, is this a local or 

residential area, what is the recourse to alleviate the problem if it becomes one.  

 

Victor Garcia addressed the publics questions and concerns. The property will be enclosed with 

additional fencing and gating. Many of the clients are coming from a variety of areas including 

the Tooele community. The clinic takes in many from the Native American Tribes and medicate. 

This is a volunteer facility. The patients that come in are wanting to get help. The facilities will 

be separated by male and female. There are about 80 employees, with 50 of them from Tooele.  

 

The Planning Commission asked the following questions:  

What is their business moto?  

Is there financial assistance?  

Who are they governed by? 

Are there current residents? 

What is the duration of the residents stay?  

Are people who are on probation allowed to attend?  

How are they going to protect people in the community? 

Does the facility have a security system internally and externally? 

Will you be moving all of the operations to this location? 

Is there continuing fencing throughout the property?  

How many residents will be there at one time?  

 

Mr. Garcia addressed the Commissions questions. Private insurances are not excepted. The 

facility is governed by IHS, Indian Health Service. They were previously located across from the 

Hospital. By moving to this location, it allows them to expand and provide more treatment. 



 

Page | 3  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Treatment lasts about 60 days for the first step of the program. It progresses onto phase two 

which helps them back into society getting jobs, schooling, and other outpatient services. The 

clients they focus on are the people in the community. They do have an updated security system. 

As well as, a full security team. The administrative offices and outpatient services will stay at the 

current location. There is plenty of parking for employees. Patients do not often have vehicles. 

The only time they tend to see vehicles is for outpatient service. They will have 60 male and 60 

females at one time.   

 

The public hearing was closed.  

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Commission. From his understanding, the facility is governed by Indian 

Affairs, but they still have to comply with City codes. The Code does allow the Commission to 

take the time they need to make a proper decision. The applicant will have to have building 

permits and fire inspections. Mr. Baker is not familiar with tribal regulations and licensing.  

 

Commissioner Gochis motioned to table the Conditional Use Permit until the following 

information is found or provided: Regarding Indian Health Services in how it relates to 

state and local coded having an impact to adjacent properties. Commissioner Hammer 

seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Nay”, Commissioner 

Proctor, “Nay”, Commissioner Sloan, “Nay”, Commissioner Dunn, “Nay”, Commissioner 

Jensen, “Nay”, Commissioner Robinson, “Nay”, and Commissioner Gochis, “Nay”. The motion 

did not pass. 

 

Commissioner Proctor motioned to approve a Conditional Use Permit request by Natsu 

Healthcare to authorize the use of “Residential Treatment Facility” for properties located 

at 491 South Main Street and 461 South Main Street on 2.5 acres in the MU-G Mixed Use 

General zoning district based on the findings and subject to conditions listed in the staff 

report including surrounding property fencing. Commissioner Dunn seconded the motion. 

The vote was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Sloan, “Aye” Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Robinson, “Aye”, and Commissioner Gochis, “Nay”. The motion passed. 

 

4. Public Hearing and Decision on a Conditional Use Permit request by Kim Gibson to 

authorize a home-based day-care business involving the care of 8 to 16 children at 822 

Cedarview Circle in the R1-8 Residential zone on .3 acres. 

 

 

 Mr. Aagard presented a home-based daycare holding the care of 8-12 children. The property is 

zoned R1-8. The applicant did provide a traffic and parking plan with drop off and pick up times 

are usually staggered. No written or verbal comments have been received. Staff is recommending 

approval with the conditions listed in the staff report.  

 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  

 



 

Page | 4  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Commissioner Dunn motioned to approve a Conditional Use Permit request by Kim 

Gibson to authorize a home-based daycare business involving the care of 8 to 16 children at 

822 Cedarview Circle in the R1-8 Residential zone on .3 acres based on the findings and 

conditions listen in the staff report. Commissioner Jensen seconded the motion. The vote was 

as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, 

“Aye” Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, Commissioner Robinson, 

“Aye”, and Commissioner Gochis, “Aye”. The motion passed. 

 

5. Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Zoning Map Amendment request by Holly 

Jones to re-assign the zoning for .39 acres located at 60 South Main Street from GC 

General Commercial zoning district to the MU-G Mixed Use General zoning district. 

 

Mr. Aagard presented a Zoning Map Amendment for the old Gordan Furniture building. It is 

zoned GC, General Commercial. A Land Use Map amendment was done in early March 

changing the Land Use to Mixed-Use. The applicant is requesting to amendment the zoning to 

the MU-G Mixed Use General zoning district for a treatment facility.  

 

The public hearing was opened.  

 

Ms. Jones addressed the Commission. The facility serves private insurance. The reason is for the 

Mixed-Use General to allow residential areas above the outpatient services on the main floor.  

 

The public hearing was closed.  

 

Commissioner Jensen motioned to forward a positive recommendation a Zoning Map 

Amendment request by Holly Jones to re assign the zoning for .39 acres located at 60 South 

Main Street from GC General Commercial zoning district to the MU-G Mixed Use General 

zoning district based on the findings and conditions listen in the staff report. Commissioner 

Robinson seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, “Aye” Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, Commissioner Robinson, “Aye”, and Commissioner Gochis, 

“Aye”. The motion passed. 

 

6. Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Land Use Map Amendment request by 

Godelio Palomino and Juana Cruz to re-assign the land use designation for .28 acres 

located at 248 North Garden Street from Medium Density Residential to Community 

Commercial 

 

Mr. Aagard presented a Land Use Map amendment for the property located east of Garden 

Street. It is zoned R1-7. The property bares the Medium Density Residential. The applicant 

would like to add a laundromat and beauty salon on the property.  

 

The Public hearing was opened.  

 



 

Page | 5  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Ken shared concerns of the buffer zone between residential and commercial areas, parking on the 

roads, and having commercial sharing a fence to residential property.   

 

Glenda Palmedo shared the intention of rezoning the property. The intention was to build a home 

when they bought the property, but with the commercial in the area, they decided to go that 

direction.  

 

Planning Commission asked the following questions: 

Did any other property owners bring concerns forward?  

How long ago did the buffer line occur?  

 

Mr. Aagard addressed the Commission. No comments were received.  

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Commission. Spot zoning used to be a concern, but it is no longer a 

concern. The question is if the rezone is in the City’s interest. It is no longer an illegal thing to 

spot zone.  

 

The public hearing was closed.  

 

Council Member Manzione addressed the Commission. The discussion of the buffer zone may 

have occurred during the general plan.  

 

Commissioner Sloan motioned to forward a positive recommendation on a Land Use Map 

Amendment request by Godelio Palomino and Juana Cruz to re-assign the land use 

designation for .28 acres located at 248 North Garden Street from Medium Density 

Residential to Community Commercial based on the findings and conditions listen in the 

staff report. Commissioner Jensen seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 

Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, “Aye” 

Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, Commissioner Robinson, “Aye”, 

and Commissioner Gochis, “Nay”. The motion passed. 

 

7. Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Land Use Map Amendment request by the 

Tooele City RDA to re-assign the land use designation for approximately 25 acres located 

at approximately 450 South Tooele Boulevard from Regional Commercial to Light 

Industrial. 

 

Mr. Aagard presented a Land Use Map amendment for the 25-acre parcel near Tooele Boulevard 

and the railroad. The property is owned by the RDA and bares the RC, Regional Commercial 

designation. The business that is interested in purchasing the property needs the map changed to 

LI, Light Industrial Zone in order to operate their business. This is a zone that allows business 

that do not have a large impact. A comment was received from USU expressing the noise 

disrupting the classes, safety of students, and the front landscape match theirs. The small piece of 

RC, is a City well.  

 

The public hearing was opened.  



 

Page | 6  
 

Community Development Department 
 

 

Mr. Stewart addressed the Commission. The City is working to be mindful of the surrounding 

area. The interested party manufactures cables and products for Ski Resorts. They operate things 

indoors with internal noise. They do intend to have outdoor storage which requires a Conditional 

Use Permit. This is a small portion of the large 300-acre project. Light industrial will have 

limited impacts to the area. Landscaping requirements will be addressed making this area of the 

City to be unique and be esthetically appealing and a benefit to the City. 

 

Sharlynn Mueller asked the following questions: 

Will there be large trucks?  

Will air brakes be restricted in this area? 

 

Mr. Aagard addressed the Commission. The City Council can put a condition on the approval to 

mitigate any issues.  

 

The public hearing was closed.  

 

The planning Commission asked the following: 

Does it need to be discussed to have a condition placed on the use of wind turbines?  

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Commission. A wind turbine is not allowed in any of the zones today.  

 

Commissioner Robinson motioned to forward a positive recommendation on a Land Use 

Map Amendment request by the Tooele City RDA to re-assign the land use designation for 

approximately 25 acres located at approximately 450 South Tooele Boulevard from 

Regional Commercial to Light Industrial based on the findings and conditions listen in the 

staff report. Commissioner Gochis seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 

Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, “Aye” 

Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, Commissioner Robinson, “Aye”, 

and Commissioner Gochis, “Aye”. The motion passed. 

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Commission in regards to the Noise Ordinance.  

 

8. Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Zoning Map Amendment request by the 

Tooele City RDA to re-assign the zoning for approximately 25 acres located at 

approximately 450 South Tooele Boulevard from the RD Research & Development zoning 

district to LI Light Industrial zoning district 

 

Mr. Aagard presented a Zoning Map Amendment request by the Tooele City RDA for the 

property located at 450 South Tooele Boulevard. The property is zoned RD, Research and 

Development. The request is to rezone it to LI, Light Industrial.  

 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  

 



 

Page | 7  
 

Community Development Department 
 

Commissioner Gochis motioned to forward a positive recommendation on a Zoning Map 

Amendment request by the Tooele City RDA to re-assign the zoning for approximately 25 

acres located at approximately 450 South Tooele Boulevard from the RD Research & 

Development zoning district to LI Light Industrial zoning district.  Commissioner Dunn 

seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Proctor, “Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, “Aye” Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Jensen, “Aye”, Commissioner Robinson, “Aye”, and Commissioner Gochis, “Aye”. The motion 

passed. 

 

9. City Council Reports 

There was not a City Council meeting held last week. There is nothing to report.  

 

10. Review and Approval of Planning Commission Minutes for the meeting held on March 

22, 2023.  

 

There were no changes to the minutes.  

 

Commissioner Jensen motioned to approve the minutes. Commissioner Robinson seconded 

the motion. The vote was as follows: Commissioner Hammer, “Aye”, Commissioner Proctor, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Sloan, “Aye” Commissioner Dunn, “Aye”, Commissioner Jensen, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Robinson, “Aye”, and Commissioner Gochis, “Aye”. The motion passed. 

 

11. Adjourn 

Chairman Hamilton adjourned the meeting at 8:15 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

The content of the minutes is not intended, nor are they submitted, as a verbatim transcription  

of the meeting. These minutes are a brief overview of what occurred at the meeting.  

 

Approved this 10th day of May, 2023 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Tyson Hamilton, Tooele City Planning Commission Chair 

 

























































 

TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-38 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING THE MODIFIED 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES HEALTH PROGRAM (PEHP) IRC SECTION 125 CAFETERIA 
PROTOTYPE PLAN FOR TOOELE CITY’S CASH-IN-LIEU/WAIVER PROGRAM. 

 
WHEREAS, in November 2021, Goldenwest Insurance notified Tooele City that 

they were reevaluating their ongoing administration of Section 125 Cafeteria Programs 
and began discussions to transition our plan administration to the Public Employees 
Health Program (PEHP); and, 

 
WHEREAS, on May 18, 2022, Tooele City adopted Resolution 2022-34 the PEHP 

Prototype Plan documents for administration of our Section 125 Cafeteria programs; and, 
 
WHEREAS, after adoption, Tooele City administration realized that the adopted 

Prototype Plan documents did not include the Cash-in-lieu/Waiver plan component which 
allows Tooele City the ability to provide  eligible employees with the opportunity to choose 
between taxable Compensation and Qualified Benefits made available under or in 
conjunction with the Plan without impacting the favorable tax status of our group health 
plan premiums, as permitted by Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) as 
amended; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Tooele City administration worked with PEHP legal counsel to modify 

their Section 125 Cash-in-Lieu Cafeteria Prototype Plan document for Tooele City’s Cash-
in-lieu/waiver plan; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Tooele City desires to adopt the modified Prototype Plan documents 

for administration of our IRC Section 125 Cash-in-Lieu Cafeteria Programs effective July 
1, 2022, the date Tooele City transitioned the ongoing administration of our Section 125 
Cafeteria plan to PEHP. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 

the document attached as Exhibit A is duly adopted by Tooele City as the Plan Documents 
to be used for the administration of Tooele City’s IRC Section 125 Cash-in-Lieu/Waiver 
Cafeteria Program.   

 
This Resolution is necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health, 

safety, or welfare of Tooele City and shall become effective upon passage, without further 
publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2023. 
  



 

 
TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 

(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  _________________________________________________________ 
 

TOOELE CITY MAYOR 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: __________________________________ 

Roger Evans Baker, Tooele City Attorney 

  



 

 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 

IRC SECTION 125 CAFETERIA PLAN FOR 
TOOELE CITY’S CASH-IN-LIEU/WAIVER 
PROGRAM. 



1 
 

125 CAFETERIA PLAN 
 

FOR TOOELE CITY 
 

ARTICLE 1 
PURPOSE 

 
1.1 Purpose of Plan.  The purpose of the Plan is to provide Eligible 

Employees of Tooele City, Utah (“Employer”) with the opportunity to 
choose between taxable Compensation and Qualified Benefits made 
available under or in conjunction with the Plan as permitted by Section 125 
of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) as amended.  Such Qualified 
Benefits shall be as described in the Benefit Programs outlined herein, 
which Benefit Programs are incorporated herein and form part of the Plan. 
 

1.2 Effective Date.  The effective date of this Plan is July 1, 2022. 
 
1.3 Source of Funds.  The Plan and Benefit Programs forming part of the 

Plan shall be funded and maintained by contributions from Employer. 
 
1.4 Tax Compliance. 
 

(a) The Plan, and certain or all of the Benefit Programs forming part of 
the Plan, are intended to result in favorable tax treatment to Participants, 
Beneficiaries or the Employer, as the case may be.  The Plan is therefore 
intended to comply with any requirements of the Internal Revenue Code 
(the “Code”) and regulations there under which impose conditions to such 
favorable tax treatment. The Plan is specifically intended to qualify as a 
“cafeteria Plan” under Section 125 of the Code. 
 
(b) To the extent that any Benefit Program or other feature of the Plan is 
required to satisfy a standard or other prerequisite to favorable tax 
treatment, the Plan is intended to facilitate and ensure compliance 
therewith.  Notwithstanding any other terms of the Plan, as with respect to 
any Benefit Program subject to such prerequisites, the terms of such 
Benefits Program, including those relating to coverage and Benefits, are 
hereby intended to be legally enforceable, and each such Benefit Program 
is intended to be maintained for the exclusive benefit of Eligible 
Employees. 
 
(c) Each Benefit Program or other component of the Plan may be 



2 
 

deemed to be, and shall be treated as, a separate Plan to the extent 
required or permitted by law, as determined by the Plan Administrator or 
other legal authority.  In the event a Benefit Program, or any portion 
thereof, is determined to have failed to comply with one or more 
prerequisites to favorable tax treatment as prescribed under the Code or 
applicable regulations, that Benefit Program or portion thereof shall be 
deemed to be and shall be treated as a separate benefit Plan, and the 
remaining Benefit programs, or portions thereof, shall not be affected by 
such non-compliance. 
 
(d) The Plan is intended not to discriminate in favor of Highly 
Compensated Individuals as to eligibility to participate, contributions and 
Benefits, and to comply in this respect with the requirements of the Code. 
If, in the judgment of the Plan Administrator, the operation of the Plan in 
any Plan Year would result in such discrimination, then the Plan 
Administrator shall select and exclude from coverage under the Plan such 
Highly Compensated Individuals who are Plan Participants, and/or reduce 
contributions and/or Benefits under the Plan by Highly Compensated 
Individuals who are Plan Participants, to the extent necessary to assure 
that, in the judgment of the Plan Administrator, the Plan does not 
discriminate against any individuals. 

 
ARTICLE 2 

DEFINITIONS 
 

When used in the Plan, certain terms are capitalized and shall have the 
respective meanings set forth in this Article or in certain other Articles of 
the Plan. 

 
Beneficiary.  “Beneficiary” means a person who is eligible to receive 
Benefits under a Benefit Program maintained under the Plan by reason of 
another individual’s active or former service with the Employer. 

 
Benefits.  “Benefits” means any amounts paid to a Participant for 
Qualified Benefits available from time to time under the Plan. 
 
Benefit Program.  “Benefit Program” means the Health Care 
Reimbursement Program, Premium Payment Plan, and the Dependent 
Day Care Assistance Program as set forth in this Plan. 

 
COBRA.  “COBRA” means the Consolidated Omnibus Budget 
Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended from time to time. 



3 
 

Code.  “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
from time to time. 

 
Compensation.  An Eligible Employee’s “Compensation” for any Plan 
Year means the Compensation paid to the Eligible Employee by the 
Employer during that period which is currently treated as wages for income 
tax withholding purposes pursuant to Code Section 3401(a) (determined 
without regard to any rules under said Code Section that limit the 
remuneration included in wages based on the nature or location of the 
employment or the services performed), plus all other payments of 
Compensation to the Eligible Employee by the Employer for such period 
which is not included above, but which is subject to reporting under Code 
Section 6401(d) and 6051(a)(3), and further including amounts contributed 
by the Eligible Employee under a salary reduction agreement with the 
Employer which are excludable from taxable income under Code Section 
125, 457, 402(g),and 414(h). 
 
Dependent.  Except as otherwise provided under the Plan, the term 
“Dependent” with respect to a Participant (or, if the Participant is married, 
by the Participant and Spouse) shall have the meaning of that term given 
by section 152 of the Code, as amended from time to time.  Solely for 
purposes of the Medical Expense Reimbursement Program, Dependent 
includes a child (son, daughter, stepson, stepdaughter, or child legally 
adopted) of a participant, who has not attained age 27 as of the end of the 
taxable year, regardless of whether that child is married or meets the 
residency, support, and other tests described in IRC §152(c)for a 
dependent. 

 
Eligible Employee.  Eligible Employee means any benefit eligible 
Employee working for and compensated by Employer, who satisfies the 
eligibility requirements of the Plan as prescribed in Section 3.1 and as 
defined by the Employer.  

 
Employee.  For purposes of this document, Employee means  an 
individual who works for the Employer in an active Employee-Employer 
relationship, including any elected or appointed official; is eligible to 
participate in the group health insurance plan offered by Employer and 
receives wages for employment with the Employer.   
 
Employer. “Employer” means Tooele City, which has taken all necessary 
steps to adopt this Cafeteria Plan. 

 



4 
 

Enrollment.  “Enrollment” shall be the period beginning on May 1st of 
each Plan Year and ending on June 15th of each Plan Year.  In the case of 
an Employee who first becomes eligible to participate in a Plan after the 
commencement of a Plan Year, such Employee shall have sixty (60) days 
following the date the Employee commences work to complete the Salary 
Reduction agreement and deliver them to Employer. 

 
Health Care Reimbursement Program.  The “Health Care 
Reimbursement Program” is a Benefit Program, the terms and conditions 
of which are set forth in this plan document. 

 
Highly Compensated Employee.  “Highly Compensated Employee” 
means, with respect to any Plan year, an Employee of the Employer who 
meets the definition of highly compensated in Code Section 414(q) and 
Section 125 (b)(1) and (d), as amended from time to time. 

 
Key Employee.  A “Key Employee” is any current or former Employee of 
the Employer (and the Beneficiaries of such Employee) who at anytime 
during the determination period was an Employee that met or meets the 
definition of a Key Employee in Code Section 416(i)(l), as amended from 
time to time. 

 
Participant.  A “Participant” is a current Eligible Employee who has 
elected to participate and has enrolled in the Plan for the Plan Year 
pursuant to the procedures prescribed in Article 4.   

 
Plan.  “Plan” means the Cafeteria Plan created by this document, 
including all Benefit Programs hereunder, and all documents associated 
with the Plan or any Benefit Program.  

 
Plan Administrator.  The “Plan Administrator” is the person, committee, 
entity or other third party designated under Article 6.1 to serve as 
administrator of the Plan.  In the absence of such designation, the 
Employer shall serve as the Plan Administrator. 

 
Plan Year.  “Plan Year” means the 12-month participation period 
beginning on July 1st and ending on June 30th. 

 
Qualified Benefits.  “Qualified Benefits” means a benefit under the 
Benefit Program[s] described herein. 

 
Qualified Expense.  “Qualified Expense” means any amount paid or 



5 
 

incurred by a Participant for Qualified Benefits not otherwise reimbursed 
under any other source. 

 
Salary Reduction Agreement.  “Salary Reduction Agreement” means a 
voluntary agreement whereby an Employee agrees to reduce his or her 
Compensation for the forthcoming Plan Year (or if the agreement becomes 
effective after the beginning of the Plan Year, for the balance of the Plan 
Year), for purposes of obtaining the Qualified Benefits offered by the Plan.  

 
Spending Account[s].  “Spending Account[s]” means the account[s] 
established in the Participant’s name and which is used to record amounts 
allocated to a Participant for a Benefit Program and their expenditure for 
Qualified Benefits. 

 
Spouse.  “Spouse” means a person to whom a Participant is legally 
married.  An individual shall be deemed to be a “Spouse” of a Participant 
as with respect to any expense which is payable or reimbursable under the 
Plan if that individual is legally married to the Participant at the time the 
expense is incurred. 
 
Status Change, Family Status Change, and/or Employment Status 
Change.  “Status Change, Family Status Change and/or Employment 
Change” means a change in status, family status or employment status as 
defined in Article 4.5 of this Plan. 

 



6 
 

ARTICLE 3 
ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION 

 
3.1 Eligibility Requirements.   
 
(a) Each Eligible Employee shall be eligible to become a Participant on the 
first day of employment.   
(b) The Eligible Employee must have other group-sponsored insurance 
coverage which meets the minimum essential coverage requirement of the 
Affordable Care Act (ACA).   

 
(i) Insurance coverage that is ineligible and does not satisfy the group-
sponsored insurance provision includes, but is not limited to: an individual 
plan, either on or off the exchange; government-sponsored Medicare; 
government-sponsored Medicaid; a Tricare plan that does not meet the 
minimum essential coverage requirement of the Affordable Care Act 
(ACA); health insurance provided to school/college students through a 
higher education program; or, coverage provided by Tooele City’s group 
health plan as an insured on another employee’s policy for reasons such 
as, both spouses are employed or the employee is covered under their 
City-employee parent’s plan. 
 

(c) An Eligible Employee shall have thirty (30) days following the date the 
Employee commences work to complete the Cash-In Lieu of Health Plan/Waiver 
Form, provide the required proof of other qualifying coverage, and to deliver the 
same to Employer’s Plan Administrator.  If the Plan Administrator does not 
receive the Enrollment Waiver form within sixty (60) days of employment, the 
Employee shall not be eligible to participate in the Plan until the next Plan Year. 
 
3.2 Cessation of Participation Generally.  A Participant shall cease to be a 
Participant in the Plan as of the earliest of: 
 
(a) the first day of a Plan Year for which the Participant does not elect to 
participate in any Benefit Program; 
 
(b) the date a Participant ceases to be an Eligible Employee and thereafter 
fails to make required or voluntary contributions under the Plan; or 
 
(c) the date on which the Plan is terminated. 
 
3.3 Family Medical Leave.  A Participant who takes an unpaid leave of 
absence under the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (“FMLA Leave”) may 



7 
 

revoke election to participate under any Benefit Program offered under this Plan, 
for the remainder of the Plan Year in which such leave of absence commences.  
Such revocation shall be in accordance with such procedures as prescribed by 
the Plan Administrator.   
 

ARTICLE 4 
PARTICIPATION ELECTIONS PROCEDURES 

 
4.1 Election Rights.  Each Eligible Employee who has satisfied the eligibility 
requirements of Section 3.1 may elect to decline health insurance coverage 
under the Plan and instead receive a cash payment by completing and delivering 
a Cash-In-Lieu of Health Plan/Waiver Form as prescribed under Section 4.4.    
An Employee’s participation status shall be renewed through the same process 
during open enrollment. 
 
4.2  Payment in Lieu of Participation.  Employer shall provide a contribution 
to Eligible Employees in a cash payment through payroll.  If the Eligible 
Employee receives a cash payment, the cash payment shall be treated as 
compensation and income and will be reported on all applicable tax forms as 
income.  
 
4.3 Election procedures. 
 
(a) At least 60 days prior to the commencement of each Plan Year, the Plan 
Administrator shall make available to each Eligible Employee a Cash-In-Lieu of 
Health Plan/Waiver Form  in electronic or paper form in regard to participation in 
the Plan for the next Plan Year.  In the case of an Employee who first becomes 
eligible to participate in the Plan after the commencement of a Plan Year, such 
participation Cash-In-Lieu of Health Plan/Waiver Form shall be made available 
as prescribed under Section 3.1. 
 
(b) Each Eligible Employee who desires to participate in a Benefit Program for 
a Plan Year shall so designate such on the Cash-In-Lieu of Health Plan/Waiver 
Form . 
 
(c) To be effective for any Plan Year, a Cash-In-Lieu of Health Plan/Waiver 
Form must be completed and returned to the Plan Administrator or its delegate at 
least fifteen (15) days prior to the first day of that Plan Year.  If an Eligible 
Employee fails to deliver a Cash-In-Lieu of Health Plan/Waiver Form to the Plan 
Administrator prior to the first day of a Plan Year, the Eligible Employee shall not 
be eligible to participate in any Benefit Program for that Plan Year. 
 



8 
 

(d) An Eligible Employee must complete and deliver a Cash-In-Lieu of Health 
Plan/Waiver Form to the Plan Administrator for each Plan Year for each Benefit 
Program in which the Eligible Employee desires to participate. 
 
4.4 Irrevocable Status of Elections.  Except as otherwise provided in this 
Article 4 and Article 3.3, any election made or deemed to have been made by an 
Eligible Employee with regard to participating or declining to participate in any 
Benefit Program offered within the Plan and with respect to any Plan Year shall 
be irrevocable for the duration of that Plan Year.  During Family Medical Leave, a 
Participant may exercise whatever rights such Participant has under the Family 
Medical Leave Act and regulations promulgated thereunder as more fully set 
forth in Article 3.3. 
 
 
4.5 Status Changes, Family or Employment Status Changes. 
 
(a) Notwithstanding Section 4.4 above, a Participant may revoke the Cash-In-
Lieu of Health Plan/Waiver Form with respect to a Benefit Program in effect for a 
Plan Year or, alternatively, may modify a prior election to take effect for the 
remainder of the Plan Year, if the revocation and the new election or 
modification, as the case may be, is on account of and consistent with a Status 
Change, Family Status Change or Employment Status Change.  In this regard, a 
benefit election revocation or modification shall be deemed to be consistent with 
a Status Change, Family Status Change and/or Employment Change only if the 
revocation or modification is necessary or appropriate as a result of the Status 
Change, Family Status Change and/or Employment Change.   
 
(b) For purposes of subsection (a) above, a “Family Status Change,” 
“Employment Status Change,” and/or “Status Change” as with respect to a 
Participant shall include the following: 
 

(i) the marriage, divorce or legal separation of the Participant; 
(ii) the death of the Participant’s Spouse or Dependent; 
(iii) the birth or adoption of a child of the Participant; 
(iv) the commencement or termination of employment of the 
Participant’s Spouse; 
(v) a change from part-time to full-time employment status (or 
vice versa) by the Participant or the Participant’s Spouse; 
(vi) the taking of an approved unpaid leave of absence by the 
Participant or the Participant’s Spouse which leave shall include 
entering into or returning from “uniformed service” as defined under 
the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act 



9 
 

of 1994 (USERRA); or the occurrence of a special Enrollment period 
as defined in Section 9801(f) of the Code); 
(vii)  a significant change in the heath coverage of the Participant 
or the Participant’s Spouse attributable to the Spouse’s employment; 
or 
(viii) such other events that the Plan Administrator determines will 
permit a change or revocation of an election during a Plan Year 
under regulations and rulings of the Internal Revenue Service. 

 
(c) Any new election made under subsection (a) above shall be effective at 
such time as the Plan Administrator shall prescribe, but not earlier than the date 
of the Family Status Change and/or Employment Status Change form is 
completed and returned to the Plan Administrator or its delegate.  Status 
Change, Family Status Change and/or Employment Change elections must be 
made and received by the Plan Administrator within 30 days of when the event 
occurred.  If the Status Change, Family Status Change and/or Employment 
Status Change form is not received by the Plan Administrator within 30 days of 
the Family Status Change, the Status Change, and/or Employment Status 
Change request shall be denied. 
 
4.6 Effect of Separation from Service. 
 
(a) Except as specifically provided under the Plan, a Participant who 
separates from service during a Plan Year shall not receive any additional 
payment during the Plan Year.  
 
(b) A Participant whose benefit election[s] for a Plan Year are revoked under  
subsection (a) shall not be entitled to make any new benefit elections in regard to 
the remaining portion of that Plan Year of separation.  A former Participant, who 
returns to service as an Eligible Employee within 30 days, may have the previous 
election reinstated for the remainder of that Plan Year.  If the former Participant 
returns to service as an Eligible Employee after 30 days, that Employee may 
make a new election or resume the previous election for the remainder of that 
Plan Year.  
 
4.7 Payment of Contributions While on FMLA Leave. 
A Participant who takes unpaid FMLA Leave and who elects to continue 
participation under this Plan shall not continue to receive payment during the 
FMLA period.   
 
4.8     Uniformed Service Under USERRA.  A Participant who is absent from 
employment with the Employer on account of being in “uniformed service,” as 



10 
 

that term is defined by the USERRA, may elect to continue participation in the 
Plan.  The coverage period shall be in accordance with USERRA § 4317, as 
amended from time to time.   
 
4.9 Changes by a Plan Administrator.  The Employer may adopt such rules 
and take such actions as it deems necessary or desirable to assure that the 
various statutory or other limitations on Benefits provided to the Eligible 
Employees are satisfied.  Such action may include a modification of any election 
made by a Participant as to the amount of salary reduction contributions to be 
made by the Participant under the Plan during a Plan Year.   
 
 

ARTICLE 5 
NONDISCRIMINATION AND APPEALS 

 
5.1 Nondiscrimination.  Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the 
contrary, in no event shall the aggregate amount of reimbursements or other 
Benefits provided to Key Employees under the Plan for a Plan Year exceed 
twenty-five percent (25%) of the aggregate amount of such reimbursements or 
other Benefits provided to all Participants for such Plan Year.  The Plan 
Administrator may adopt such rules as it deems necessary or desirable to assure 
that the foregoing limitation is satisfied, including imposing restrictions on the 
amount of contributions a Key Employee may elect to receive under the Plan for 
a Plan Year.  Any such rules shall be uniformly applied to similarly situated 
individuals. 
 
5.2 Appeals Procedure. 
 
(a) Any Participant or other person who believes that a benefit is then due to 
such person under the Plan (a “claimant”), including one greater than that initially 
determined by the Plan Administrator, may file an appeal in writing with the Plan 
Administrator. 
 
(b) The Plan Administrator shall within ninety (90) days of the receipt of an 
appeal either allow or deny the appeal in writing.  A denial of an appeal shall be 
written in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant and shall 
include: 

 
  (i) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; 

(ii) specific references to pertinent Plan provisions on which the denial 
is based; 

(iii) a description of any additional material or information necessary for 



11 
 

the claimant to perfect the claim for the benefit believed due and an 
explanation of why such material or information is necessary; and 

(iv) an explanation of the Plan’s claim review procedure. 
 
(c) A claimant whose appeal is denied (or the claimant’s duly authorized 
representative) may, within sixty (60) days after receipt of denial of the appeal: 
 

(i) submit a written request for review to the Plan Administrator; 
(ii) submit pertinent documents; and 
(iii) submit issues and comments in writing. 

 
(d) The Plan Administrator shall notify the claimant in writing of its decision on 
review within sixty (60) days of receipt of a request for review.  The decision on 
review shall be written in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant 
and shall include specific reasons for the decision and specific references to the 
pertinent Plan provision on which the decision is based. 
 
(e) The 90-day and 60-day periods described in subsections (b) and (d), 
respectively, may be extended at the discretion of the Plan Administrator for a 
second ninety (90) or sixty (60) day period, as the case may be, provided that 
written notice of the extension is furnished to the claimant prior to the termination 
of the initial period, indicating the special circumstances requiring such extension 
of time and the date by which a final decision is expected. 
 
(f) A claimant may state the reason or reasons forming the basis of the Plan 
Administrator review to a benefit under the Plan and may submit written evidence 
in support of the this review made under and in accordance with the procedures 
set forth in this Section.  Such action is not required.  However, the failure to 
state a reason or to submit written evidence in support of a Plan Administrator 
review shall permanently bar the claimant from raising such reason or submitting 
such evidence in any forum at a later date. 
 
(g) Participants and Beneficiaries shall not be entitled to challenge the Plan 
Administrator’s determinations in judicial or administrative proceedings without 
first complying with the procedures in this Article.  The decisions made pursuant 
to this Section are intended to be final and binding on Participants, Beneficiaries 
and others.   
 



12 
 

ARTICLE 6 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN 

 
6.1 Plan Administrator.  The Employer has determined to act as the Plan 
Administrator and named fiduciary of the Plan.   
 
6.2 Powers and Duties of Plan Administrator.  Except as specifically 
provided otherwise, the Plan Administrator shall have final and binding 
discretionary authority to control and manage the operation and administration of 
the Plan, including all rights and powers necessary or convenient to the carrying 
out all of its functions hereunder, whether or not such rights and powers are 
specifically enumerated herein.  In exercising its responsibilities hereunder, the 
Plan Administrator may manage and administer the Plan through the use of 
agents (who may include Employees of the Employer).  Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, and in addition to the other powers set forth in this 
Article 9, the Plan Administrator shall have the following express authorities: 
 
(a) To construe and interpret the Plan, decide all questions of eligibility and 
determine the amount, manner and time of payment of any Benefits hereunder, 
all in the sole discretion of the Plan Administrator.  Any such construction, 
interpretation, etc., shall be final and binding on Participants, Beneficiaries and all 
other persons. 
 
(b) To prescribe procedures to be followed by Participants in filing requests for 
reimbursements of proper expenses, and to authorize payment of such expense 
reimbursements. 
 
(c) To prepare and distribute, in such manner as the Plan Administrator 
determines to be appropriate, information explaining the Plan. 
 
(d) To receive from the Employer, and from Participants and Beneficiaries, 
such information, and to maintain records concerning such information, as shall 
be necessary for the proper administration of the Plan. 
 
(e) To furnish the Employer upon request such annual and other reports with 
respect to the administration of the Plan as are reasonable and appropriate. 
 
(f) To review and decide claims for Benefits, and the review of the denial of 
any such claims, pursuant to and to the extent provided in Article 7, including any 
interpretations of the Plan, which decisions and interpretations the Plan 
Administrator shall have full discretion and authority to make hereunder. 
 



13 
 

6.3 Consultation With Advisors.  Except as specifically provided herein, the 
Plan Administrator (or any other fiduciary designated pursuant to Section 6.5) 
may employ one or more persons to render advice with regard to any 
responsibility it may have under the Plan.  The Plan Administrator may consult 
with counsel, actuaries, accountants, physicians or other advisors (who may be 
counsel, actuaries, accountants, physicians or other advisors for the Employer) 
and may also from time to time utilize the services of Employees and agents of 
the Employer in the discharge of its responsibilities.   
 
6.4 Records and Reports.  The Plan Administrator and Employer shall take 
all such action as it deems necessary or appropriate to comply with 
governmental laws and regulations relating to the maintenance of records, 
notifications to Participants, filings with the Internal Revenue Service and U.S. 
Department of Labor, and all other such requirements applicable to the Plan.   
 
6.5 Designation of Other Fiduciaries.  The Employer may designate in 
writing other persons to carry out a specified part or parts of the Plan 
Administrator’s responsibilities hereunder (including the power to designate other 
persons to carry out a part of such designated responsibility); provided, however, 
that such designation may not include any power to manage or control assets of 
the Plan, or to amend the Plan.  Any such designation must be accepted by the 
designated person, who shall acknowledge in writing that such person is a 
fiduciary with respect to the Plan. 
 
6.6 Obligations of Plan Administrator and Employers. 
 
(a) The Plan Administrator shall make such determinations as are necessary 
to accomplish the purposes of the Plan with respect to individual Participants or 
classes of such Participants. 
 
(b) The Employer shall notify the Plan Administrator of facts relevant to such 
determinations, including without limitation, length of service, compensation for 
services, date of death, permanent disability, granting or terminating of leave of 
absence, age, retirement, termination of service for any reason (but indicating 
such reason), and termination of participation.  The Employer shall also notify the 
Plan Administrator of all other facts that may be necessary for the Plan 
Administrator to discharge its responsibilities hereunder.   

 
 



14 
 

ARTICLE 7 
AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION 

 
7.1 Amendment or Termination of Plan. 
 
(a) The Employer reserves the right at any time and from time to time to 
amend or terminate in whole or in part any of the provisions of the Plan or Benefit 
Program. 
 
(b) Any such amendment or termination shall be effective as of the date 
specified by the Employer.  An amendment may be affected by establishment, 
modification, or termination of a Benefit Program by Employer.  Any such 
amendment or termination may take effect retroactively or otherwise. 
 
(c) In the event of a termination or reduction of Benefits under the Plan or any 
Benefit Program, the Plan shall be liable only for benefit payments due and 
owing as of the effective date of such termination or reduction, and no payments 
scheduled to be made on or after such effective date shall result in any liability to 
the Plan, the Plan Administrator, the Employer, or any agent thereof. 
 
7.2 Form of Amendment or Termination.  Any amendment or termination of 
the Plan or any part of the Plan shall be made by an instrument in writing, duly 
certified, reflecting that such change has been authorized by Employer or the 
Plan Administrator.   
 
 

ARTICLE 8 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
8.1 Exemption for ERISA.  This Plan is exempt from the Employers 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 pursuant to 29 U.S.C. 1003(b). 
 
8.2 No Guarantee of Employment, etc.  Neither the maintenance of the Plan 
nor any part thereof shall be construed as giving any Participant hereunder or 
other Employees any right to remain in the employ of the Employer and none of 
the terms hereof shall be construed as an express or implied contract between 
the Employer and any Participant or Beneficiary.  All terms and conditions of this 
Plan are subject to unilateral modification, or termination by Employer.  No 
commissioner, officer, or Employee of the Employer in any way guarantees to 
any Participant or Beneficiary the payment of any benefit or amount that may 
become due in accordance with the terms of the Plan.   
 



15 
 

8.3 Required Information to Be Furnished. 
 
(a) Each Participant and Beneficiary will furnish to the Plan Administrator such 
information as the Plan Administrator considers necessary or desirable for 
purposes of administering the Plan, and the provisions of the Plan respecting any 
payments hereunder are conditional upon the prompt submission by the 
Participant or Beneficiary of such true, full, and complete information as the Plan 
Administrator may request. 
 
(b) Any communication, statement or notice to a Participant and Beneficiary 
addressed to the last post-office address filed with the Plan Administrator, or if no 
such address was filed with the Plan Administrator, then to the last post-office 
address of the Participant or Beneficiary as shown on the Employer’s records, 
will be binding on the Participant or Beneficiary for all purposes of this Plan and 
neither the Plan Administrator nor the Employer shall be obliged to search for or 
ascertain the whereabouts of any Participant or Beneficiary. 
 
8.4 Nonalienation.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Participants and 
Beneficiaries shall have no right to assign, transfer, hypothecate, encumber, 
commute or anticipate an interest in any Benefits under the Plan, and the 
payment of Benefits shall in no way be subject to any legal process to levy upon 
or attach the same for payment of any claim against any Participant or 
Beneficiary.   
 
8.5 Recovery of Overpayments.  Notwithstanding any other provision of the 
Plan to the contrary, the Plan Administrator shall be authorized on behalf of the 
Plan to institute or cause to be instituted action to recover an overpayment of 
Benefits made pursuant to the Plan to any Participant or Beneficiary as 
authorized by the Code. 
 
8.6 Payment of Benefits to Persons Under Legal Disability.  Whenever and 
as often as any person entitled to payments under the Plan shall be determined 
to be a minor or under other legal disability or otherwise incapacitated in any way 
so as to be unable to manage such person’s financial affairs, or otherwise 
incapable of giving a valid receipt and discharge for any payment, the Plan 
Administrator, in its sole discretion, may direct that all or any portion of such 
payments be made (i) to such person, (ii) to such person’s legal guardian or 
conservator, or (iii) to such person’s Spouse or to any other person, in any 
manner the Plan Administrator considers advisable, to be expended for the 
person’s benefit.  The decision of the Plan Administrator shall, in each case, be 
final and binding upon all persons.  Any payment made pursuant to the power 
herein conferred shall operate as a complete discharge of the obligations under 



16 
 

the Plan in respect thereof of the Plan, the Employer, and the Plan Administrator. 
 
8.7 Controlling Law.  To the extent not preempted by the law of the United 
States of America, the laws of the State of Utah shall be the controlling law in all 
matters relating to the Plan and shall apply. 
 
8.8 Severability.  If any provision of the Plan is held to be illegal or invalid for 
any reason, said illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts of the 
Plan, but the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if said illegal and invalid 
provision had never been included herein. 
 
8.9 Limitations on Provisions.  The provisions of the Plan and any Benefits 
provided by the Plan shall be limited as described herein.  Any benefit payable 
under any other Employee Benefit Plan maintained by the Employer shall be paid 
solely in accordance with the terms and provisions of such Plan, and nothing in 
this Plan shall operate or be construed in any way to modify, amend, or affect the 
terms and provisions of such other Plan. 
 
8.10 Gender and Number.  Masculine gender shall include the feminine and 
neuter, the singular shall include the plural, and the plural shall include the 
singular, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 
 
8.11 Headings.  All article and section headings in the Plan are intended 
merely for convenience and shall in no way be deemed to modify or supplement 
the actual terms and provisions set for thereunder. 
 
8.12 Counterparts.  This Plan may be executed in several counterparts, and 
each shall be an original without reference to the others. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I certify that I have authority to do hereby execute the Plan 

on behalf of Employer:  

 
Name:____________________________________________________________________ 
  
Title: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 

Signature       Date 
 



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-49 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AN AGREEMENT 
WITH RH BORDEN AND COMPANY LLC FOR SEWER LINE TRANSMISSIVE 
ACOUSTICS ASSESSMENT SERVICES. 
 
 WHEREAS, the health of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW), including 
the sewer collection system, requires periodic inspection and maintenance, which protect 
the POTW, public health, and private property; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 6, 2022, the City Council approved Resolution 2022-62, 
approving an agreement with RH Borden and Company LLC for sewer line inspection 
services using a technique known as transmissive acoustics, with good results; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Public Works Department proposes to retain RH Borden and 
Company LLC for additional sewer line transmissive acoustics inspection services; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the services rendered will include inspections and reports necessary 
for system improvement recommendations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, attached as Exhibit A are the agreement documents with RH Borden, 
in the amount of $57,700.00 for the services described in more detail therein; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council is required by TCC Chapter 1-5 to approve all claims 
against the City exceeding $30,000.00: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
the Agreement attached as Exhibit A with RH Borden and Company LLC in the amount 
of $57,700.00 is hereby approved. 
 
 This Resolution shall become effective upon passage, without further publication, 
by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
    
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2023. 
  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
 

(For)           (Against) 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved)         (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________ 
    Roger Evans Baker, City Attorney 
  



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Agreement Documents 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
AGREEMENT  

 
         TOOELE CITY CORPORATION, a municipal corporation of the State of Utah, (hereinafter “City”), 

and RH Borden and Company LLC of 2961 W Maple Loop Dr Ste 230 Lehi, Utah 84043, a company, 

(hereinafter “Contractor”) enter into this Agreement on the 26th day of June, 2023 (the “Effective Date”). 

 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the promises contained in this Agreement, the City and the 

Contractor agree to the following: 

 

1. Services (Scope of Work).  The Contractor shall provide the following services to the City: 

See attached Sewer Collections System Service Agreement (dated June 14, 2023), Quotation  

(dated March 1, 2023), and InfoSense letter (dated March 18, 2021) for transmissive acoustics 

assessments and manhole inspections. 

 

2. Disclaimer of Right of Control.  Contractor shall perform its duties competently.  The City 

disclaims any right to control the Contractor’s performance of the Services. 

 

3. Compensation. 

a. Rate.  The City shall pay the Contractor the sum of $57,700.00 for fully performing the 

Services, pursuant to invoice. 

b. Total Cost Contract. This Agreement is a “Total Cost Contract.”  The contract Rate 

includes all costs and expenses associated with the provision of the Services. 

c. No Benefits.   The parties specifically agree that as an independent contractor, Contractor 

neither claims nor is entitled to benefits accorded City employees. 

4. Term of Agreement.  Contractor shall fully perform the Services by September 6th, 2023. 

5. Termination.  The City may terminate this Agreement at any time.  Should the City terminate this 

Agreement prior to the Services being fully performed, the City shall pay for those Services 

performed. 

6. Indemnification and Insurance. 

a. Contractor Liability Insurance.  Contractor shall obtain and maintain liability insurance in 

the amount of at least $1,000,000.  Contractor shall list the City as an additional insured on 

endorsements issued under its liability insurance policy.  Contractor shall require that all 

of its subcontractors list the City as an additional insured on endorsements issued under 

their respective liability insurance policies, with respect to the Services rendered under this 

Agreement. 

b. Contractor Indemnification.  Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City and its agents 

harmless from all claims of liability for injury or damage caused by any intentional or 

negligent act or omission of Contractor and/or its agents and subcontractors arising out of 

or related to this Agreement. 

c. Contractor Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Contractor shall purchase and maintain 

workers compensation insurance for all of its employees.  In the alternative, assuming 

eligibility, Contractor may obtain a Workers’ Compensation Coverage Waiver from the 

Utah Labor Commission.  Contractor shall verify that all its subcontractors have purchased 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

and do maintain workers compensation insurance for their employees or have obtained an 

exclusion, and shall indemnify the City against claims resulting from a failure to obtain 

and maintain the insurance. 

d. Evidence of Contractor Insurance.  Contractor shall provide written evidence of liability 

insurance, including all Contractor and subcontractor endorsements, and workers 

compensation insurance or exclusion to the City within ten (10) days of the Effective Date.  

The City will not make any payments under this Agreement until it receives from 

Contractor the evidence of insurance. 

e. Status Verification Indemnification.  Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City and its 

agents harmless from all claims resulting from any violation of immigration status 

verification obligations contained in U.C.A. §63G-11-103 et seq. 

f. Post-Retirement Release.  Contractor shall release the City from all claims related to any 

alleged violation of State of Utah post-retirement employment rules, and shall complete 

and return to the City the attached certification and release. 

7. Business License.  If required by Tooele City Code §5-1-1 et seq., Contractor shall obtain a Tooele 

City business license. 

8. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement is the only agreement or understanding between the parties, 

and may be modified or amended only by a written document signed by both parties. 

9. Waiver of Jury Trial.  The Parties irrevocably waive any and all right to trial by jury in any legal 

proceeding arising out of or relating to this contract and the transactions contemplated. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

 

TOOELE CITY CORPORATION   CONTRACTOR 

 

 

____________________________________  _______________________________________ 

Debra E. Winn, Tooele City Mayor                       Signature 

       Print Name/Title:_________________________ 

 

Attest:      

 

 

____________________________________ 

Michelle Y. Pitt, Tooele City Recorder 

 

 

SEAL 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Roger Evans Baker, Tooele City Attorney 
(Revised 04/27/2023) 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

UTAH RETIREMENT SYSTEMS  
POST-EMPLOYMENT/POST-RETIREMENT 

RESTRICTIONS ACT CERTIFICATION & RELEASE  
 
Tooele City is a Utah Retirement System (URS) participating agency.  As a participating agency, post-
retirement employment/vendor/contractor rules apply.  Post-retirement employment means returning 
to work either on our payroll or as a vendor/contractor for a URS participating employer following your 
retirement date with the Utah Retirement Systems. Different standards apply depending on whether you 
return to work within one year or after one year from your retirement date with URS. 
 
You must separate from employment (including part-time and vendor/contractor arrangements) with any 
participating employer for one year following your retirement date with URS, unless eligible exclusions 
apply. 
 
You are responsible for understanding post-retirement employment rules and ensuring there is no 
violation of such rules by providing services to Tooele City Corporation.  If you have any questions, call 
the URS office at 801-366-7770 or 800-695-4877 before you begin any work for or provide any services 
to Tooele City. 
  
CHECK APPLICABLE BOX: 
□ Contractor (a sole proprietor) certifies that he or she is NOT a Utah State Retirement Systems 
(URS) retiree and acknowledges that should he/she retire from the URS system in the future, he/she 
assumes all responsibility for compliance with post-retirement reemployment restrictions, notifications, 
and/or penalties that may occur at any time in the future. 

□ Contractor (on behalf of a partnership, LLC, company, or corporation) certifies that NO officer or 
principal is a Utah State Retirement Systems (URS) retiree and acknowledges that should he/she retire 
from the URS system in the future, he/she assumes all responsibility for compliance with post-retirement 
reemployment restrictions, notifications, and/or penalties that may occur at any time in the future. 

□ Contractor certifies that following contractor(s), officer(s) or principal(s) of the business ARE Utah 
State Retirement Systems (URS) retiree(s).  Contractor further certifies that the URS office has been 
properly notified of post-retirement reemployment of such individuals.  Contractor assumes all 
responsibility for compliance with post-retirement reemployment restrictions, notifications, and 
or/penalties that may occur at any time in the future if found to be in violation.  URS Retirees: 
 
 Name: _________________________________ Social Security Number: ________________ 
 
 Name: _________________________________ Social Security Number: ________________ 

[State law requires that the City, through Human Resources, provide such information to URS.] 
 
As a condition of doing business with Tooele City, you hereby accept responsibility and waive all claims of 
joint liability against Tooele City for any violations of the URS post-retirement re-employment/ 
vendor/contractor rules. 
 
 
________________________________________  ______________________________ 
Contractor Signature      Date 



Sewer Collections System Service Agreement
Transmissive Acoustics Assessments

and Manhole Inspections

This agreement made this 14 day of June 2023, by and between Tooele City with primary business address of 90 North
Main Street Tooele, UT 84074 hereinafter referred to as The Customer, and RH Borden and Company, LLC with primary
business address of 1659 West Cornerstone Drive, South Jordan, UT 84095, hereinafter referred to as The Provider.
These parties jointly are hereinafter referred to as The Parties.

1. The Parties hereby agree to the following:

a. The Customer will provide to The Provider:
i. Permission to open manholes and make assessments. By execution of this agreement
permission is hereby granted.

ii. A map of all manholes and sewer lines to be assessed including manhole locations and which
sewer line segments are to be assessed.

iii. Ability to access the desired manhole locations.
iv. Traffic Control assistance for roads that are greater than two lanes or with speed limits greater

than 30 mile per hour. All required traffic control permits shall be the responsibility of the
Customer.

b. The Provider will conduct sewer line inspections using transmissive acoustics for the Customer as
follows:

i. Sewer line Acoustic Transmissive Inspection services as specified in ASTM F3220 – 17
“Standard Practice for Prioritizing Sewer Pipe Cleaning Operations by Using Transmissive
Acoustic Inspection”. These services will be accomplished by using the systems provided by
InfoSense, Inc. using equipment known as Sewer Line Rapid Assessment Tools (SL-RAT).

ii. A detailed summary of each sewer line assessed including the following:
i. Unique Measurement Identification Number
ii. Time and Date of Measurement
iii. Length of pipe segment measured as measured by available Global Positioning

Services (GPS).
iv. GPS Location of Transmitter and Receiver at the time of measurement
v. The Condition of the pipe will be reported on a scale including but not limited to a

score of 0-10 as shown below:
a. 10 = Good - No significant obstructions within the pipe
b. 7-10 = Good – Minor impediments within the pipe such as joint offsets, partial

sags, protruding laterals, debris, minor grease, and/or minor root fibers and/or
other obstructions that could affect the score.

c. 4-6 = Impediments within the pipe such as joint offsets, partial sags, protruding
laterals, debris, grease, and/or root fibers. Single or multiple occurrences and/or
other obstructions that could affect the score.

d. 1-3 = Significant impediments within the pipe such as multiple joint offsets, near
full pipe sag, multiple protruding laterals, significant debris, significant grease,
significant root fibers and/or root balls. Single or multiple occurrences and/or
other obstructions that could affect the score.

e. 0 = Full pipe sag, single or multiple obstructions within the pipe reaching or
nearly reaching the flow and/or other obstructions that could affect the score.

iii. The format of the final report shall be provided electronically as a hosted GIS dashboard.



c. The Provider will perform a visual manhole inspection for each manhole for Customer as follows:

i. Each manhole will be visually inspected and rated as Good, Poor, or Fair for the following
attributes:
i. Proper seating of manhole lid
ii. Condition of manhole collar
iii. Condition of overall interior manhole structure
iv. Condition of manhole shelf
v. Presence of infiltration

ii. Data from manhole inspections shall be added as attribute data along with the acoustic
assessments in the GIS dashboard.

2. In consideration of the foregoing, The Parties agree that:
a. The Provider will ensure that all assessment equipment will be used properly, as prescribed by the

manufacturer, to collect assessment data.
b. Provider will follow the acoustic assessment process as specified in ASTM F3220 – 17 as noted above.
c. Data provided indicates the pipe and manhole condition at the time of measurement and does not
include any factors or conditions that arise after the time of the inspection.
d. Provider does not warrant or otherwise guarantee collection system performance or structural

condition.
e. Each Party shall indemnify and hold the other harmless against any claim of liability or loss from personal

injury or property damage resulting from or arising out of the negligence, reckless misconduct, or willful
misconduct of the indemnifying Party, its employees, contractors, or agents, except to the extent such
claims or damages may be due to or caused by the negligence, reckless misconduct, or willful
misconduct of the other Party, or its employees, contractors, or agents. The indemnified Party will
provide the indemnifying Party with prompt, written notice of any claim covered by this indemnification;
provided that any failure of the indemnified Party to provide any such notice, or to provide it promptly,
shall not relieve the indemnifying Party from its indemnification obligation in respect of such claim,
except to the extent the indemnifying Party can establish actual prejudice and direct damages as a result
thereof. The indemnified Party will cooperate appropriately with the indemnifying Party in connection
with the indemnifying Party’s defense of such claim. The indemnifying Party shall defend any
indemnified Party, at the indemnified Party’s request, against any claim with counsel reasonably
satisfactory to the indemnified Party. The indemnifying Party shall not settle or compromise any such
claim or consent to the entry of any judgment without the prior written consent of each indemnified
Party and without an unconditional release of all claims by each claimant or plaintiff in favor of each
indemnified Party.

f. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a partnership, joint venture, or employment
relationship. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, Customer assumes no responsibility
for any damage or loss that may occur to Provider’s property, except for willful or intentional damage to
the property of Provider caused by the Customer. Customer has no responsibility for any maintenance
of Provider’s equipment, or for Provider’s employees.

3. Customer agrees to pay Provider a standard fee of $0.18 per foot assessed with the SL-RAT for assessment and
$10.00 per manhole that is visually inspected for services specified herein. This fee shall apply to manholes
located in the main thoroughfare and with straightforward access. Manholes that are not easily accessed such
as those off the main road, in easements, back yards, alley ways, fields or other such difficult to access locations
shall be charged an additional rate of $10.00 per manhole when the manhole. The Provider will make a
reasonable efforts to locate and access all manholes to conduct the inspection. If one or more manholes are
buried, unknown, blocked, on private property or for any reason inaccessible, the Provider will skip the
assessments of these segments and communicate the manhole status to the Customer. The Customer shall
have the option to locate the manholes themselves and relay this information to the Provider to perform the
assessments. If the Provider’s attendance is requested as the manholes are being located, the Customer agrees



to pay a wait fee of $150.00 per hour while the customer locates and makes the manhole(s) accessible.
4. The term of this agreement shall be for 3 years following the first date of service. During the term Provider shall

conduct acoustic assessments each year and provide results to Customer.

5. The Parties agree that this Service Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between
them and supersedes any other written or oral agreement now in place pertaining to this subject. It is
understood that this agreement is legally binding upon each Party, their successors, and assigns. Any change or
modification hereto may only be made in writing and agreed to by an officer or owner of each Party.

In agreement hereof and in recognition that we are authorized to execute agreements for our respective Party,
we hereto set our signatures:

RH Borden and Company, LLC Tooele City

by ____________________________________

June 14, 2023 Date ___________________________________







TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-50 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AN AGREEMENT 
WITH TECSERV, INC. FOR COMPUTER NETWORK MAINTENANCE SERVICES. 
  

WHEREAS, the Tooele City Administration finds it necessary to contract services 
for the purpose of providing computer network maintenance, troubleshooting, and 
consultant services for Tooele City=s computer network; and, 
 

WHEREAS, TecServ, Inc., has proposed to provide these services and the 
Administration wishes to enter into the agreement with TecServ, Inc.; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the agreement amount shall not exceed $62,000 for the one-year term 
of the agreement, invoiced at the regular contract rate of $155.00 per hour, and at the 
rate of $175.00 per hour for additional work; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the term of the agreement shall be one year beginning July 1, 2023: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
an agreement with TecServ, Inc. (see Exhibit A) is hereby approved, for computer 
network, maintenance, troubleshooting, and consultant services for a sum not to exceed 
$62,000. 
 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage by authority of 
the Tooele City Charter. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2023. 
 
 



 
TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 

(For) (Against) 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: __________________________________ 

Roger Evans Baker, Tooele City Attorney 



 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 

TecServe Agreement 



1

Monthly Network Services Agreement

This agreement dated 2/09/2023_ is made by and between _Tooele City Corporation_ (Client) whose address is _90 
North Main, Tooele, Utah 84071_ and TecServ, Inc (Consultant) whose corporate address is 358 Rio Grande St. Suite 
250 Salt Lake City, Utah 84101. 

1. Consultation Services.  Client hereby employs the Consultant to perform the following services in accordance 
with the terms and conditions set forth in this agreement.  The Consultant will perform computer network 
maintenance activities for Client and will consult with the offices and employees of Client concerning matters 
relating to the management of Client’s computer network.  The Scope of Work to be performed by consultant is 
defined in Attachment A.

2. Terms of Agreement.  This agreement will be in effect for 12 Month(s) (July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024).  In the 
event that client has insufficient funds, by appropriation, by appropriation limitation or grant, to continue 
payments under this Agreement, Client may terminate this Agreement by giving TecServ not less than thirty
(30) days prior written notice.

3. Time Devoted by Consultant.  The term of this contract is based upon consultant committing to perform 
activities to maintain Client computer network and handle computer network emergencies.  Consultant will 
spend5 hours per week of consulting services on Client’s behalf for computer network maintenance activities. 
This can be adjusted at any time by Tooele City.

4. Schedule.  The work performed by consultant will be for on-site services at Client’s facilities and may 
occasionally include remote connectivity to Client’s network.  These hours will be worked on a schedule to be 
set at by both parties at a later date.  Schedule may be altered with mutual agreement from both parties.

5. Additional Time.  Consultant will respond to Client emergencies within 2 hours and spend sufficient time to 
resolve such emergencies.  The fees for emergency server services are covered within the plan from the 5 hours 
per week.  Emergencies are defined as computer network issues that directly prevent the operation of business 
by Client.  Computer network issues that do not prevent business operations shall be handled during the on-site 
maintenance service schedule.  If Client requests maintenance services outside the maintenance schedule, and 
these services are clearly not emergencies, Consultant will bill Client for these hours at the standard client rate.
$175.00 per hour or $262.50 after regular business hours, weekends and holidays, This includes computer 
network projects that cannot be completed within the regularly scheduled time.

6. Payment to Consultant.  The amount paid to consultant for this contract shall not exceed $62,000.00 annually. 
Consultant will invoice Client on the 1st of each month, this will be at the contract rate of $155.00 per hour
$3,358.33 per month. All additional work will be invoiced on the last day of that month.  Payment is due upon 
receipt of invoice.
Additional project work is not covered within this scheduled maintenance contract.  This additional time will be 
billed at $175 per hour or $262.50 after regular business hours, weekends and holidays.  Product purchases are 
not considered part of monthly contracts or other consulting services. Work Terms on Product Sales are 
considered “due upon receipt”.

7. Independent Consultant.  Both Client and the Consultant agree that the Consultant will act as an independent 
agency in the performance of its duties under this contract.  Accordingly, the Consultant shall be responsible for 
payment of all taxes including Federal, State and local taxes arising out of the Consultants activities in 
accordance with this contract, including by way of illustration but not limitation, Federal and State income tax, 
Social Security tax, Unemployment.

8. Confidential Information.  The Consultant agrees that any information received by the Consultant during this 
contract, which concerns the personal, financial or other affairs of Client and its agents and employees will be



2

treated by the Consultant in full confidence and will not be revealed to any other persons, firms or 
organizations. 

9. Employment of Others.  Client may from time-to-time request that the Consultant arrange for the services of
others outside of the employ of TecServ.  All costs to the Consultant for those services will be paid by Client,
but in no event shall the Consultant employ others without the prior authorization of Client.

10. Non-Solicitation of Employees.    Client agrees that it will not solicit TecServ's employees to seek full or part
time employment or other contractual arrangement with its company during the term of this Agreement or for
twelve (12) months after the last invoice date from TecServ to Client.  Client agrees that TecServ employees
are not "contract for hire".  Client shall not attempt to engage, contract or hire TecServ employees, TecServ’s
contractors or other assignees independently of this Agreement without prior written consent from TecServ.

Client may be released from such restriction under the following terms and with written approval from
TecServ:
• The payment of $50,000.00 to TecServ for each employee hired by Client, and
• Each TecServ employee hired by Client has performed services for Client under this Agreement for

twelve (12) consecutive months or more.

_____ Initial of Client demonstrating that Client understands and fully accepts the Non-Solicitation Covenant 
and terms and agrees to such terms should Client seek to hire or directly contract TecServ employees, 
contractors or other assignees. 

11. Liability.  With regard to the services to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to the terms of this
agreement, the Consultant shall  be liable to Client, or to anyone who may claim any right due to any
relationship with the Client,  for any acts or omissions in the performance of service on the part of the
Consultant or on the part of the agents or employees of the Consultant when said acts or omissions of the
Consultant are due to willful or intentional misconduct or due to gross or simple negligence.

12. Venue.  This agreement and its performances there under shall be governed by the laws of the state of Utah.  In
the event that litigation results from or arises out of this Agreement or the performance thereof, the parties
agree to reimburse the prevailing party’s reasonable attorney’s fees, court costs, and all other expenses,
whether or not taxable by the court as costs, in addition to any other relief to which the prevailing party may be
entitled.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto executed this Agreement. 

Client 

By:  _______________________________________ 

Title:  ______________________________________ 

TecServ, Inc. 

By: ___________________________________ 

Title:Owner_____________________________ 

Date:06/08/2023____________
Date:  ______________________________________ 



3

Attachment A 
Scope of Work 

Services include: 
Ongoing technical consulting 
Onsite maintenance every month for applying software patches, checking backups, updating virus definitions, and 
troubleshooting problems 
Preferred pricing on all hardware and software with best pricing available from vendors that offer government 
pricing. 
Access to TecServ’s extensive knowledge base and technical staff. 
Services provided by a CIO level resource including budgeting, strategic planning, policy setting for architecture 
and security, and project management. 

Services to be performed
5 hours  maintenance per week until adjusted by Tooele City. 
Emergency response time: 2 hour onsite, 30 minutes for remote administration (when applicable).* 
Phone support available 24 hours a day 7 days a week. 
Large scale projects that are performed in addition to ongoing maintenance will be billed at $175 per hour. 
Remote monitoring of servers and routers 24 hours a day 7 days a week. 

Travel Cost:  If more than one onsite visit occurs per week, one way travel time will be billed.   

*Onsite response will be guaranteed only within 20 miles of our offices, for guaranteed response time see section 5 above.  For remote 
administration a high speed internet connection and terminal environment are required.  Remote administration will be utilized when 
situations permit it.



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION

RESOLUTION 2023-51

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING CHANGE ORDER #2
WITH BROKEN ARROW INC. FOR THE 2022 SEVENTH STREET ROAD AND UTILITY
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT.

WHEREAS, by Resolution 2022-38, on May 18, 2022, Tooele City retained Broken
Arrow Inc. for completion of the 2022 Seventh Street Road and Utility Improvement Project;
and,

WHEREAS, by Resolution 2022-64, on July 6, 2022, Tooele City issued Change
Order No. 1 for the reconstruction of the existing parking lot, storm drain, and curb and
gutter facilities at the new Parks Building; and,

WHEREAS, during execution of the Work, two (2) separate underground utility
conflicts have been identified that involve both Rocky Mountain Power and Lumen (aka
CenturyLink); and,

WHEREAS, the first utility conflict is for Rocky Mountain Power underground utility
line relocation, which is not covered within the terms of the franchise agreement, and
results in the need to install conduit across Seventh Street at three (3) separate locations
and also provide electrical vaults, associated appurtenances, and restoration of
infrastructure; and,

WHEREAS, Broken Arrow has provided a cost estimate to complete this additional
scope of work in the amount of $54,904.83.  A copy of their Estimate is attached as Exhibit
A; and,

WHEREAS, the second utility conflict is for mitigation of a Lumen underground utility
conduit bank that was not identified by BlueStakes, but which was discovered by Broken
Arrow during progress of the work; and,

WHEREAS, in talking with Lumen representatives, the time required to mitigate the
utility conflict on their part would result in significant delays to Broken Arrow, resulting in
potential delay damages to the City, and further delay completion of the Work; and,

WHEREAS, the City has worked with Broken Arrow to provide a modified design for
the storm drain installation that can avoid the Lumen utility conflict, but which will require
the need to provide a new 8' deep drop storm drain manhole and a new storm drain
collection box which would allow the City’s storm drain pipe to pass below the Lumen utility
conflict; and,

WHEREAS, Broken Arrow has estimated that the cost for the new facilities will be
less than $10,000.00, and that by providing the new manhole and box the Project could
be completed without further delay; and,



 
WHEREAS, the Administration requests a contract Change in Price adjustment of

$65,000.00, which cost would allow for mitigation of both the Rocky Mountain and the
Lumen utility conflicts, and also requests an additional $5,000 contingency for further
unanticipated conflicts:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that the
City Council hereby approves the Contract Change Order (see Exhibit B) with Broken
Arrow Inc. in the amount of Sixty-Five Thousand Dollars ($65,000.00) for the additional
utility conflict mitigation, and approves an additional Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) for
further changed conditions at the discretion of the Mayor.

This Resolution shall become effective upon passage, without further publication,
by authority of the Tooele City Charter.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council
this             day of                                         , 2023.



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL

(For) (Against)

______________________________ ______________________________

______________________________ ______________________________

______________________________ ______________________________

______________________________ ______________________________

______________________________ ______________________________

ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY
(Approved) (Disapproved)

______________________________ ______________________________

ATTEST:

                                                            
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder
       

           S E A L

Approved as to Form:                                                                    
Roger Evans Baker, Tooele City Attorney



EXHIBIT  A

Broken Arrow Inc. Cost Proposal



BROKEN ARROW ESTIMATE
2022 Seventh Street Road and Utility

Improvement - Conduit Crossings
06/13/2023

8960 Clinton Landing Road
Lake Point, UT, 84074

Page Number: 1
 POWERED BY PROEST

Tooele City Corporation
Paul Hansen

90 North Main Street
Tooele, UT, 84074

(435) 843-2132
PaulH@TooeleCity.org

Estimator Contact Information:
Travis Loader

Office: 801-355-0527
Mobile: 435-840-4727

tloader@brokenarrowusa.com

SUMMARY OF SERVICES
Broken Arrow is pleased to submit this estimate for the scope of work outlined below. Our estimate is based upon PacifiCorp drawings; CC# 11446;
WO#/REQ# 008289911; Dated 10/24/2022
 
 
EXCLUSIONS:
CQC Testing & Inspection
Surveying
Permits and/or Bonds
Dewatering
Construction Water
 

SUMMARY OF BID ITEMS

Description Total Estimate Job
100 SITE WORK $54,904.83 100.00%
Total Estimate $54,904.83 100.00%

Estimate Table

Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total
Estimate

100 SITE WORK
Provide & Install 4" Conduit Crossing (Includes: Traffic Control,
Saw Cut Existing Asphalt, Demo & Dispose of Asphalt, Demo &
Dispose of Existing Sidewalk, Removal & Replacement of Existing
Fence, Removal & Replacement of Existing Landscape,
Excavation, Haul Off & Dispose of Trench Waste, Pipe Bedding, 4"
PVC Conduit & Fiberglass Bends, Import Backfill, Road Base, New
6" Thick Sidewalk, & New 4" Thick Asphalt Tooele City Spec)

3.00 EA 18,301.61 54,904.83



BROKEN ARROW ESTIMATE
2022 Seventh Street Road and Utility

Improvement - Conduit Crossings
06/13/2023

8960 Clinton Landing Road
Lake Point, UT, 84074

Page Number: 2
 POWERED BY PROEST

Acceptance of Proposal - The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. Broken Arrow Inc. is
authorized to proceed with the work as specified.  Payments shall follow the contract terms upon an executed contract. otherwise, all
payments on completed work will be net 30 days.  Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be
executed only upon written orders and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  Late payments shall be subject to a 2%
monthly (24 % annual) interest fee.  All collection costs incurred on delinquent account shall be paid by the customer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved By: ______________________________________________                                 Date: __________________



EXHIBIT B

Change Order No. 2



CHANGE ORDER
No.             2

DATE OF ISSUANCE: June 21, 2023 EFFECTIVE DATE: June 21, 2023

OWNER: Tooele City

CONTRACTOR:
Contract:
Project:

Broken Arrow Inc.

2022 SEVENTH STREET ROAD AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

ENGINEER: Paul Hansen

You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents.

Description: Modification of the Contract amount by $65,000 for utility mitigation of undergound utilities and extends the contract
completion time. 

Reason  Change Order: There are three (3) Rocky Mountain underground conflicts and a conflict with Lumen (aka CenturyLink) with the storm
drain line as designed.  The Change will mitigate the conflict and allow the project to proceed.  Also accounts for delays due
to weather conditions.

Attachments: (List documents supporting change) Broken Arrow Inc.  cost proposal dated June 13, 2023

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIME

Original Contract Price Original Contract Time:

Substantial Completion:        October 1, 2022                        

$1,151,617.07 Ready for final payment:       October 15, 2022                        

days or date

Net Increase (Decrease) from No.    0 No.      1 Net Change from Previous Change Orders No.     -     to No.     -     :

$ 149,964.16
Substantial Completion:                        0                                     
Ready for final payment:                       0

days

Contract Price Prior to this Change Order: Contract Times Prior to this Change Order:

$1,301,581.23
Substantial Completion:        October 1, 2022                        
Ready for final payment:       October 15, 2022                        

days or date

Net Increase (Decrease) of this Change Order: Net Increase (Decrease) of this Change Order:

$65,000.00
Substantial Completion:                        365                             
Ready for final payment                        365

days

Contract Price with all Approved Change Orders: Contract Time with all Approved Change Orders:

$1,366,581.23
Substantial Completion:        October 1, 2023                        
Ready for final payment:       October 15, 2023                        

days or date

RECOMMENDED: APPROVED: APPROVED:

by by by

Engineer (Authorized Signature) Owner (Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature)

Date:                                                                        Date:                                                                         Date:                                                                         

V:\Tooele City\roads\2022 Seventh Street\Broken Arrow\Contract\Change Order No. 2 (Utility Conflict)\Broken Arrow Change Order No 2 (Utlity Conflictt).wpd 



 

Page | 1  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Tooele City Council and the Tooele City Redevelopment Agency  

Work Meeting Minutes 

 

Date: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 

Time: 5:30 p.m. 

Place: Tooele City Hall, Council Chambers 

90 North Main Street, Tooele, Utah 

 

City Council Members Present: 

Justin Brady 

Maresa Manzione  

David McCall 

Ed Hansen 

 

City Council Members Excused: 

Tony Graf 

 

City Employees Present: 

Mayor Debbie Winn 

Adrian Day, Police Department Chief 

Roger Baker, City Attorney 

Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 

Michelle Pitt, City Recorder  

Holly Potter, Deputy City Recorder 

Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

Paul Hansen, City Engineer 

Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director 

 

Minutes prepared by Katherin Yei 

 

1. Open City Council Meeting 

Chairman Brady called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call 

Justin Brady, Present 

Maresa Manzione, Present  

David McCall, Present  

Ed Hansen, Present  

Tony Graf, Excused 

 

3. Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Winn reported on the following:  

An accident occurred at Settlement Canyon Reservoir over the weekend. The first responders 

were amazing in rescuing the 12-year-old girl that was trapped in the vehicle submerged in 



 

Page | 2  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

water. There were 20 individuals that participated in the Fire Academy within Tooele County. 

Six of them were from Tooele City.  

 

4. Council Member’s Report 

The Council Members reported on the events they attended during the week.  

 

5. Discussion Items 

A. Ordinance 2023-25 An Ordinance of Tooele City Enacting Tooele City Code Section 8-4-

7 to Reinstate Civil Penalties for Public Nuisances 

Presented by Roger Baker, City Attorney 

 

Mr. Baker presented civil penalties for public nuisances. After discussion with the Mayor and 

staff, the City would like to reinstate the ability to give a ticket for public nuisance. The first 

interaction is a warning citation with a two-week time frame. If it does not get cleaned up within 

the time frame, they will receive fines. The first fine is $50. For continuous violations, it is a 

more aggressive amount with a one-week time frame.  There are appeal provisions if the public 

seeks that route. The changes to the Ordinance are in section 8, section 4, and section 5 assigning 

guidelines, expectations, definitions, and authority of action for police officers and code 

enforcement officers.   

 

The City Council asked the following: 

How will the public be notified if they are not in compliance? 

How do you determine the amount of the fine after the first citation?  

Is there a process to appeal? 

Are there resources to help someone clean up?  

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Council. The methods of serving citations has been expanded similar to 

parking citations.  If the property owner does not clean it up within the weeks following the first 

and second citation, a third citation is $200, fourth time $500 fine, etc. They are allowed to 

appeal any violation or ticket following the administrative hearing officer procedure. The police 

department has discretion to obtain compliance with criminal law. Staff will use discretion to 

help as needed.  Reinstating civil citations and penalties will give the Administration the 

flexibility of three tools for eliminating nuisances. 

 

Mayor Winn addressed the Council. There is urgency to get this approved, to help clean up the 

City before the summer is over. The item will be back for vote in the business meeting.  

 

The Council is in support of this item.  

 

B. Payment of a Fee-in-Lieu of Water Rights Conveyance Request for the Flex Spaces 

Project 

Presented by Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director 

 

Mr. Stewart presented a request by Property Elevated for flex spaces project. They are asking for 

2.3 acre/feet water with an estimated $7 million value post construction. They estimate to 



 

Page | 3  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

support over 100 jobs. There will be 33 units in the flex space with partial restrooms. They 

estimate 0.9 acre/feet to be used within the building. The other amount is for outdoor irrigation.  

 

The City Council asked the following questions: 

Can they decrease the amount of water usage for outdoor irrigation?  

 

Mr. Stewart addressed the Council. Staff can discuss reducing the outdoor irrigation with the 

applicant.  

 

Mayor Winn addressed the Council. The landscape changes being approved, will address 

reducing that number.  

 

The Council shows support, but would like to see a building design and have discussion on the 

outdoor irrigation.  

 

C. Budget Discussion 

 

Ms. Wimmer presented adjustments to the budget. As well as a beginning discussion on the tax 

rate. The adjustments to the budget include the following: 

An increased amount of $3600 for HR department’s software, Line of duty benefits. The 

reallocation of benefits for the City Council, Police salary, increase in benefits, and an additional 

$30,000 to the 41-fund for City projects.   

 

The tax rate value came in at over $3 billion. The Council can accept the rate as is, and the rate 

will decrease by 4.6%. They can choose to raise the rate 3%-5% to keep up with cost and 

inflation. Raising the certified tax rate by 3% is about $19 a year for a home owner with a value 

of $500,000 on their home. With an increase of 4.78%, the increase would be about $30 a year.  

 

The Council had a discussion on the following: 

Keeping the current tax, moving forward with 3%, and truth and taxation.   

 

Ms. Wimmer addressed the Council. Tort Liability or the Judgment Levy is allowing the City to 

separate the tax rate to pay the lawsuit bonds. Staff will take the rate the Council decides, deduct 

the amount they need for the bonds to show how the tax money is being spent. The State says the 

City does need to go through truth and taxation to change the future tax rate for the amount 

needed to pay the bond. When the bond is paid off, the rate would go down.  

 

6. Closed Meeting - Litigation, Property Acquisition, and/or Personnel 

There was no closed meeting.  

 

7. Adjourn 

Chairman Brady adjourned the meeting at 6:30 p.m.  

 

 

 



 

Page | 4  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

 

The content of the minutes is not intended, nor are they submitted, as a verbatim transcription of 

the meeting. These minutes are a brief overview of what occurred at the meeting.  

 

Approved this ____ day of June, 2023 

 

_____________________________________________  

Justin Brady, City Council Chair 
 



 

Page | 1  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Tooele City Council Business Meeting Minutes 

 

Date: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 

Time: 7:00 p.m. 

Place: Tooele City Hall, Council Chambers 

90 North Main Street, Tooele, Utah 

 

City Council Members Present: 

Ed Hansen 

Justin Brady 

Maresa Manzione 

Tony Graf 

Dave McCall 

 

City Employees Present: 

Mayor Debbie Winn 

Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 

Adrian Day, Police Department Chief 

Roger Baker, City Attorney 

Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 

Michelle Pitt, City Recorder  

Holly Potter, Deputy City Recorder 

Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

Paul Hansen, City Engineer 

Jared Stewart, Community Engagement  

 

Minutes prepared by Katherin Yei 

 

Chairman Brady called the meeting to order at 7:19 p.m. 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Brady.  

 

2. Roll Call  

Tony Graf, Present 

Ed Hansen, Present  

Justin Brady, Present 

Maresa Manzione, Present 

Dave McCall, Present  

  

3. Public Comment Period 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  

 



 

Page | 2  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

4. Resolution 2023-28 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Consenting to the Mayor’s 

Appointment of Chase Noble Randall as Library Director 

Presented by Debbie Winn, Mayor 

 

Mayor Winn presented the appointment of Chase Noble Randall as the Library Director.   

 

Council Member Graf motioned to approve Resolution 2023-28; A Resolution of the Tooele 

City Council Consenting to the Mayor’s Appointment of Chase Noble Randall as Library 

Director. Council Member Manzione seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council 

Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council 

Member Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

5. Swearing in of Chase Noble Randall as the Library Director 

Presented by Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 

 

Ms. Pitt swore in Chase Noble Randall as the Library Director.  

 

6. Public Hearing & Motion on Ordinance 2023-21 An Ordinance of the Tooele City 

Council Amending Tooele City Code Chapter 4-8 Regarding Local Streets and 

Substandard Local Streets 

Presented by Paul Hansen, City Engineer 

 

Mr. Hansen presented an amendment to City code chapter 4-8 regarding local streets and 

substandard roads. There are streets located within the City that are considered substandard 

roads, meaning they are old historic street that fall less than the 60-foot right of way. Due to 

House Bill 406, municipalities are now prohibited from requiring asphalt widths more than 32 

feet for local class residential streets. As well as needing some miscellaneous corrections within 

the code.  

The primary focus are the substandard roads located 150 west, 50 west, and 50 east or Garden 

Street. The standard used to be long narrow lots. Now, it is common to see those lots split with 

primary housing be built. Staff has created table 4-8-2.6, a table of substandard local street 

requirements. It establishes right-of-way sections, right of way widths for each section, unified 

asphalt width requirements, curb and gutter requirements, and where sidewalks will be required. 

The 30-foot requirement reflects accessing fire hydrants. It does remove the park strip 

requirements on the roads, reducing the local street pavement widths from 34 feet to 32 feet. It 

reduces the associated right of way width from 60 feet to 58 feet.  

If the Council moves forward, any new plat can request the option to drop it down to the smaller 

width. It does apply city wide. As well as appealing the in-fill overlay district street design 

section of the code, creates a new code section for each function street classification, and 

editorial changes.  

 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  

 

Council Member Manzione motioned to adopt an Ordinance 2023-21; An Ordinance of the 

Tooele City Council Amending Tooele City Code Chapter 4-8 Regarding Local Streets and 



 

Page | 3  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Substandard Local Streets. Council Member McCall seconded the motion. The vote was as 

follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member 

Brady, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion 

passed.  

 

7. Public Hearing & Motion on Ordinance 2023-22 An Ordinance of the Tooele City 

Council Amending Provisions of the Tooele City Code Related to Landscaping and Water 

Conservation  

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Develop Director  

 

Mr. Aagard presented provisions to the City code in regards to landscaping and water 

conservation. The purpose behind the changes to help conserve water, participate ‘flip your 

strip’, and clarify dry-scape elements. The Planning Commission has heard this item and 

forwarded a positive recommendation.  

 

The City Council asked the following questions: 

What is the average size of a park strip? 

Are no drought plants allowed in exhibit A?  

How do these are stay maintained?  

Does weed barrier help? 

Where does side yard start? 

 

Mr. Aagard addressed the Council’s questions. The ordinance says the tree should go behind the 

sidewalk line on the property if the park strip is not big enough. The amendment does not have 

enforcement for these items, but nuisance could be considered. Weed barrier is a temporary 

solution. It works for about a year. A side yard starts at the front plain, going down the side, 

ending at the back plain.  

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Council. The Code allows for shrubs and water-wise plants. 

 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  

 

Council Member McCall motioned to approve Ordinance 2023-22. Council Member Graf 

seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council 

Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” 

Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

8. Public Hearing & Motion on Ordinance 2023-26 An Ordinance of the Tooele City 

Council Vacating a Dedicated Public Utility and Drainage Easement on Lot 24 of the 

Gordon Hollows Phase 1 Subdivision 

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Develop Director  

 

Mr. Aagard presented the vacation of a dedicated public easement. The lot has utility and 

drainage area. There is a Rocky Mountain line located there. He has submitted the letters needed 

from the utility companies. Tooele city has provided a letter of approval.  



 

Page | 4  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

 

The public hearing was open. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  

 

Council Member Hansen motioned to approve Ordinance 2023-26.  Council Member 

Manzione seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” 

Council Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, 

“Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

9. Public Hearing & Motion on Ordinance 2023-27 An Ordinance of the Tooele City 

Council Amending the Tooele City General Plan Land Use Map for the Tooele City 

Business Park Zoning District, and Designating the District as a Light Industrial Land Use 

Category 

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director  

 

Mr. Aagard presented an amendment to the Tooele City General Plan Land Use Map.  

They are designated as Regional Commercial. This designation prohibits industrial zones and 

land uses. It will propose a number of industrial uses. The change will be from Regional 

Commercial to Light Industrial.  

 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  

 

Council Member Manzione motioned to approve Ordinance 2023-27 An Ordinance of the 

Tooele City Council Amending the Tooele City General Plan Land Use Map for the Tooele 

City Business Park Zoning District, and Designating the District as a Light Industrial Land 

Use Category. Council Member Hansen seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council 

Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council 

Member Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

10. Public Hearing & Motion on Ordinance 2023-28 An Ordinance of the Tooele City 

Council Enacting Tooele City Code Chapter 7-16B, Amending Section 7-13-1, Creating the 

Tooele City Business Park Zoning District, and Amending the Tooele City Zoning Map 

Accordingly 

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director  

 

Mr. Aagard presented the zoning map amendment and creation of a new zoning district, adopting 

development standards. The current zoning is RD, Research and Development and LI Light 

Industrial with a rezone to TCBP, Tooele City Business Park. There were many public comments 

and concerns of having industrial near residential zones. To help mitigate those concerns, there 

are three sections to the new zone.  

 

Section A, the closest to the residential area, is limited to commercial and office type businesses 

only. Building height is limited to 35 feet and required additional architecture with pitched roofs 

and all mechanical being in the building or on the ground. It is designed to be a buffer, 

minimizing the impact to the surrounding areas. Section B has lighter industrial uses, prohibiting 

heavy industrial. The building height allows up to 50 feet with flat roof being permitted. 



 

Page | 5  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Mechanical is allowed on the roof with decoration hiding it from public view. They will have 

access to the railroad. Section C is the farthest from residential, would allow heavy industrial. 

Building height would be permitted up to 70 feet with the same architecture requirements as 

section b.  

 

The new code will establish architecture standards, fencing standards, signs, prohibits bill boards 

along the future Mid-valley Highway, and limits wind turbines to section B & C with size 

limitations. It will include a table of uses for the Tooele City Business Park. Many heavy uses 

such as hazardous material, recycling places, and auto wrecking yards are not permitted in the 

new zone. The Planning Commission has heard and forwarded a positive recommendation.  

 

The Council asked the following questions: 

Are the different areas based off of property lines? 

Could a property owner be a part of two different zones? 

Does it limit the amount of wind turbines in the project? 

 

Mr. Aagard addressed the Council’s questions. A business could be a part of two zones, but it 

would have to go through regular approval process. It is self-limiting because the restriction 

itself depends on property.  

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Council. CRS railroad design has been merged into the zoning map. 

 

The public hearing was opened. No one came forward. The public hearing was closed.  

 

Council Member Manzione motioned to approve Ordinance 2023-28. Council Member 

Hansen seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council 

Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” 

Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

11. Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request by Kurti Halim for the Proposed Halim 

Subdivision to Include Three Single-Family Residential Lots on Approximately 3.37 Acres 

Located at Approximately 400 East 1000 North in the R1-8 Residential Zoning District 

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director  

 

Mr. Aagard presented a preliminary plan request to include 3 single-family residential lots on the 

property located near 100 north and 400 east. It is zoned R1-8. The application proposes to create 

three individual lots. The middle canyon drainage ditch does run near the property and will not 

be tampered with. There will be a storm water detention basin. The project does meet all 

standards. Staff is recommending approval with the conditions listed in the staff report.  

 

The Council asked the following questions: 

Is there a way to preserve a section for a trail or put asphalt where the sidewalk would cross the 

trail? 

 



 

Page | 6  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Mr. Aagard addressed the Council. This process was started a couple years ago by the applicant. 

He has reached out to the applicant about easements and a trail in the future, but has not heard 

back. There is a park strip and sidewalk on that road, they could put in an asphalt trail.  

 

Council Member Hansen motioned to approve Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request by 

Kurti Halim for the Proposed Halim Subdivision to Include Three Single-Family 

Residential Lots on Approximately 3.37 Acres Located at Approximately 400 East 1000 

North in the R1-8 Residential Zoning District. Council Member McCall seconded the motion. 

The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” 

Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, 

“Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

12. Ordinance 2023-25 An Ordinance of Tooele City Enacting Tooele City Code Section 8-

4-7 to Reinstate Civil Penalties for Public Nuisances 

Presented by Roger Baker, City Attorney  

 

Mr. Baker presented civil penalties for public nuisances. After discussion with the Mayor and 

staff, the City would like to reinstate the ability to give a ticket for public nuisances. The first 

interaction is a warning citation with a two-week time frame. If the nuisance does not get cleaned 

up within the time frame, the property owner will receive further citations and fines. The first 

fine is $50. For continuous violations, it is a more aggressive amount with a one-week time 

frame for compliance.  There are appeal provisions if the public seeks that route. The Code 

sections amended are Chapter 8, Section 4 regarding nuisance definitions (making graffiti an 

immediate nuisance instead of needing to wait 15 days, and making junk cars an immediate 

nuisance instead of needing to wait 3 days), Section 5 regarding the respective authority of police 

officers and code enforcement officers, and Section 7 regarding civil penalties.   

 

Council Member Graf motioned to approve Ordinance 2023-25 An Ordinance of Tooele 

City Enacting Tooele City Code Section 8-4-7 to Reinstate Civil Penalties for Public 

Nuisances. Council Member Manzione seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council 

Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council 

Member Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

13. Resolution 2023-24 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving the Form of a 

Lease Agreement with Hoot Owl Leasing LLC for a Cell Tower Site 

Presented by Roger Baker, City Attorney   

 

Mr. Baker presented a lease agreement with Hoot Owl Leasing LLC to build a cell phone tower 

on the former sewer treatment plant site. They are currently operating a temporary tower under a 

temporary license contract. They will pay a $750 a month under both the license and the lease. 

There are deadlines and extension periods in the contract they can invoke.  

 

Council Member McCall motioned to approve Ordinance 2023-24. Chairman Brady 

seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council 



 

Page | 7  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” 

Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

14. Resolution 2023-44 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving an Agreement 

with SKM for Water System PLC and SCADA Upgrade 

Presented by Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

 

Mr. Grandpre presented an upgrade for the water system’s PLC and SCADA. For culinary water, 

existing radios are obsolete. This project would allow them to update the radios preparing them 

for fiber communications in the future. The SCADA system will be more secure being brought 

through the police department tower instead of the public works facility. The cost is 

$210,322.80, with the finds coming from the water department budget.  

 

Chairman Brady motioned to approve Resolution 2023-44, A Resolution of the Tooele City 

Council Approving an Agreement with SKM for Water System PLC and SCADA Upgrade. 

Council Member McCall seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member 

Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council Member 

Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

15. Resolution 2023-45 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Amending the Tooele City 

Fee Schedule Regarding Bulk Secondary Water Fees 

Presented by Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

 

Mr. Grandpre presented bulk-secondary water fees. Currently the fee is $1.50 per 750 gallons. 

The bulk water system is now metered allowing a more accurate feed. They are asking to raise 

the fee to $4.50 for 1000 gallons.  

 

The Council asked the following questions: 

How do other Cities do it? 

 

The Council showed favor to raising the fee to $5. They would like to revisit the cost once the 

new Headworks building is complete.  

 

Mr. Grandpre addressed the Council. They will buy a large amount and have a pin that they can 

use until the water is gone. It is different from other Cities, because Tooele is getting the water to 

a re-use standard.  

 

Mr. Baker addressed the Council. When a city provides a service, the fees have to be a 

reasonable proximation of what it costs the city to provide the service. A product is different. 

Water is similar to a product, allowing them to sell it for more than mere cost. Mr. Grandpre has 

been conservative in his estimate of the cost of producing treated waste water.  

 

Council Member McCall motioned to approve Ordinance 2023-45, with a $5 cost.  Council 

Member Manzione seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, 



 

Page | 8  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

“Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council Member 

Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

16. Resolution 2023-43 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving Insurance 

Coverage for Insurance Period 2023-2024 

Presented by Michelle Pitt, City Recorder  

 

Tooele City employs a comprehensive risk management strategy to avoid harm to persons and 

property and to decrease claims against the general funds of the City.  The City has been insured 

by the Utah Local Governments Trust since 2018.  Since we’ve been with the Trust, we’ve had a 

33% increase in vehicles, 67% increase in payroll, 40% increase in full time employees, and 

167% increase in part time employees.  The premium for 2021-2022 was $268,924.  For the 

2023-2024 insurance period, the premium will be $290,862, comprised of $185,880 for liability 

coverage, $86,620 for property coverage, and $18,362 for auto coverage. 

 

Council Member Manzione motioned to approve Ordinance 2023-43; Tooele City Council 

Approving Insurance Coverage for Insurance Period 2023-2024. Council Member McCall 

seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council 

Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” 

Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

17. Invoices & Purchase Orders   

Ms. Pitt presented the following invoices and purchase orders:  

 

Tooele City was originally asked to pay 1/3 of the repairs for the culvert pipe, Settlement 

Canyon was going to pay 1/3, and Tooele County was going to pay 1/3.  Tooele County has 

decided that they are not going to pay their 1/3, and so Tooele City is paying 2/3 of the costs of 

the repairs.  Mayor Winn added that she is working with UDOT to possibly pay the other third of 

this invoice because they divert storm water in to this pipe.  The invoice from Settlement Canyon 

Irrigation Company is in the amount of $46,351.00 

 

Ms. Pitt stated that there was an open and unfinished storm drain at 100 East that posed a safety 

threat.  It needed to be repaired immediately.  Ms. Pitt had emailed the Council to ask for a vote 

allowing the City to move ahead with the repairs.  She was bringing back the invoice for those 

repairs to this meeting to ratify that decision.  The amount of the invoice from Broken Arrow is 

in the amount of $36,947.09. 

 

Council Member Graf motioned to approve invoice & purchase orders. Council Member 

McCall seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council 

Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” 

Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

18. Minutes 

 

The following changes need to be made to the work meeting minutes: 



 

Page | 9  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Jim Bolser needs to be removed. The closed meeting needs to have a vote added. Include P.M. at 

the end of the time.  

 

The following changes need to be made to the business meeting minutes: 

Correct the spelling of Captain Lonnie Collins  

 

Chairman Brady motioned to approve Minutes with the corrections as stated. Council 

Member McCall seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, 

“Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Brady, “Aye,” Council Member 

Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed.  

 

19. Adjourn 

Chairman Brady adjourned the meeting at 8:40pm.  

 

 

 

 

The content of the minutes is not intended, nor are they submitted, as a verbatim transcription of 

the meeting. These minutes are a brief overview of what occurred at the meeting.  

 

Approved this ___ day of June, 2023 

 

 

_____________________________________________  

Justin Brady, City Council Chair 

 

 
 



 

Page | 1  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Municipal Building Authority of  

Tooele City, Utah 

Date: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 

Time: 7:00 p.m. 

Place: Tooele City Hall, Council Chambers 

90 North Main Street, Tooele, Utah 

 

Board Members Present: 

Justin Brady 

Maresa Manzione  

Tony Graf 

David McCall 

Ed Hansen 

 

City Employees Present: 

Mayor Debbie Winn 

Adrian Day, Police Department Chief 

Roger Baker, City Attorney 

Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 

Michelle Pitt, City Recorder  

Holly Potter, Deputy City Recorder 

Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

Paul Hansen, City Engineer 

Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director 

 

Minutes prepared by Katherin Yei 

 

1. Open MBA Meeting 

Chairman Brady called the meeting to order at 7:00p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call 

Tony Graf, Present  

David McCall, Present 

Justin Brady, Present 

Maresa Manzione, Present 

Ed Hansen, Present 

 

3. Public Hearing on the New Fire Station #3 to Receive Input from the Public with Respect 

to (i) the Issuance of Bonds Not to Exceed a Maximum Principal of $9,000,000 and (ii) any 

Potential Economic Impact that the Improvements, Facility, or Property Financed in 

Whole or in Part with the Proceeds of the Bonds may have on the Private Sector 

Presented by Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director  

 

Ms. Wimmer presented the New Fire Station #3 in regards to bonds.  

 



 

Page | 2  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

The Tooele City Municipal Building Authority is applying for funding for the construction of 

Fire Station #3 through the Community Impact Board (CIB) in the amount of $8,500,000.  The 

purpose of the loan request is to construct a fire station to serve the growing community and to 

alleviate a critical need to have efficient access to needed fire equipment to serve our commercial 

and industrial businesses. Tooele City has experienced substantial growth both in commercial 

buildings and residential. With the increase in growth and changes in the community, Tooele 

City contracted with Center for Public Safety Management, LLC (CPSM) to conduct a public 

safety study for our fire department. This study confirmed the immediate need for a fire station 

on the north end of the City. Tooele City has been planning for a new fire station for many years 

and purchased the property for the site in 2010. Available funding has prevented the construction 

of this building but as the need has become critical the Tooele City Council has taken the steps to 

secure the funding for the project through a property tax rate increase. 

 

The majority of growth within Tooele City has been on the north and northwest areas of the City.  

It is expected that nearly 90% of future growth will also be in this geographical area with the 

majority of available land for both residential and commercial falling within this area. With the 

commercial growth and growth in the industrial areas within the City, Tooele City purchased a 

ladder truck to serve the needs of this vital area of our community. However, our outdated Fire 

Station #1 cannot accommodate this asset and cannot be remodeled to house the vehicle so it is 

currently stationed at Fire Station #2, which adds significant response time to our critical 

industrial and commercial areas. The construction of the new facility will allow for critical assets 

to be placed in a location that will enhance our ability to respond to emergencies and 

significantly reduce critical response times. 

 

Fire Station #3 will be constructed on property currently owned by Tooele City at approximately 

145 East 1000 North. The property is approximately 2.5 acres and the proposed facility is 6,400 

square feet. Tooele City currently operates with a full time Fire Chief and full time Fire Marshall 

with all other members of the department being volunteers. With the growth in the City, it is 

expected that a full-time fire department will be needed in the future. The new facility has been 

designed to accommodate this future need.  

 

The City has considered other options for funding the facility, including the issuance of Sales 

Tax Revenue Bonds or Lease Revenue Bonds in the public bond market. The public market 

scenarios provide a payment higher than the City has budget for and would reduce the funds 

available for construction due to the increased financing costs.  The CIB loan provides financing 

terms that allow the City to pay the bonds with current revenues allocated to the construction of 

the facility while also providing sufficient construction funds to complete the project in a 

desirable manner.  

 

There are no additional tax increases expected to the residents of Tooele City to pay for this 

project.  Funds have already been set aside for the payment of these bonds and the City has the 

required escrow payment that will be required at closing.  If this project is funded by the CIB it is 

expected that the City will repay the loan at an estimated interest rate of 3% over a 30-year term 

with a yearly payment of approximately $443,000.  There will be no impact to the public as far 

as user fees, special assessments or any property taxes due on the project or property. 



 

Page | 3  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

 

The public hearing was opened.  

 

Andrew Lewis spoke on a case he was involved in where he was not pleased with the judicial 

system within the City.  

 

The public hearing was closed.  

 

4. Minutes 

May 17, 2023 Municipal Building Authority Business Meeting 

 

The following changes need to be made to the May 17 minutes:  

Correct the year on the date, Remove Board Member Graf from roll, Remove Jim Bolser, correct 

presenters, and MBA chair.  

 

Board Member McCall motioned to approve the minutes with the changes listed above. 

Board Member Manzione seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Board Member 

Hansen, “Aye,” Board Member Manzione, “Aye,” Board Member Graf, “Aye,” Board Member 

Brady, “Aye,” Board Member McCall, “Aye.” The motion passed. 

 

5. Adjourn 

Chairman Brady adjourned the meeting at 7:10 pm. 

 

 

The content of the minutes is not intended, nor are they submitted, as a verbatim transcription of 

the meeting. These minutes are a brief overview of what occurred at the meeting.  

 

Approved this ___ day of June, 2023 

 

 

 

 _____________________________________________  

Justin Brady, Municipal Building Authority Chair 


	06.21.23 CC&MBA Packet.pdf
	06.21.23 CC&MBA Agenda.pdf
	Resolution 2023-46 Adopt Tax Rate - Proposed Rate.pdf
	Resolution 2023-47 Truth in Taxation Tentative Budget.pdf
	Resolution 2023-48 Budget Amendments.pdf
	Exhibit A - Budget Amendments

	Ordinance 2023-30 Wagstaff Investments Tooele South  LUMA.pdf
	Ordinance 2023-30 Wagstaff Investments Tooele South  LUMA.pdf
	Exhibit A - Petition and Mapping Pertinent to Zoning Map Amendment
	Exhibit B - Staff Report
	Exhibit C - Planning Commission Minutes


	Ordinance 2023-31 McInnes LUMA.pdf
	Ordinance 2023-31 McInnes LUMA.pdf
	Exhibit A - Petition and Mapping Pertinent to Zoning Map Amendment
	Exhibit B - Staff Report
	Exhibit C - Planning Commission Minutes


	Ordinance 2023-20 Beacon House ZMA.pdf
	Ordinance 2023-20 - Beacon House ZMA.pdf
	Ordinance 2023-20 - Beacon House ZMA.pdf
	Exhibit A - Petition and Mapping Pertinent to Zoning Map Amendment
	Exhibit B - Staff Report
	Exhibit C - Planning Commission Minutes



	Ordinance 2023-24 Personnel Policies & Procedures Manual.pdf
	Resolution 2023-38 Adoption of the PEHP Section 125 Plan.pdf
	2023-38 Adoption of the PEHP Section 125 Plan Prototype Document for Cash-In-Lieu Program for Tooele City.pdf
	Exhibit A
	125 Cafeteria Plan - Cash In Lieu - Master Plan Document (002).pdf



	Resolution 2023-49 Transmissive Acoustics Assessment.pdf
	2023-49 Transmissive Acoustics Assessment - sewer collections.pdf
	2023-49 Exhibit A-1 RH Borden Agreement 2023.pdf
	2023-49 Exhibit A-2 RHBorden Service Agreement.pdf
	2023-49 Exhibit A-3 RHBorden Quote.pdf
	2023-49 Exhibit A-4 InfoSense Letter.pdf


	Resolution 2023-50 TecServ Agreement.pdf
	2023-50 TecServ (002).pdf
	Exhibit A - TecServ Agreement


	Resolution 2023-51 2022 Seventh Street Change Order No2.pdf
	2023-51 Change Order 2 - 2022 Seventh Street Road and Utility Improvement Project.pdf
	Exhibit A - Broken Arrow Inc. Cost Proposal
	Exhibit B - Change Order No. 2


	06.07.23 WK Minutes.pdf
	06.07.23 CC Minutes.pdf
	06.07.23 MBA Minutes.pdf




